

Report of the Security Council for 2022

General Assembly

Official Records Seventy-seventh Session Supplement No. 2



A/77/2

General Assembly Official Records Seventy-seventh Session Supplement No. 2

Report of the Security Council for 2022



Note

Symbols of United Nations documents are composed of letters combined with figures. Mention of such a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

The resolutions and decisions of the Security Council are published in yearly volumes of *Resolutions and Decisions of the Security Council*.

ISSN 0082-8238

Contents

Ch	apter		Page
		Introduction	8
		ating to all questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the of international peace and security	
	1.	Resolutions adopted by the Security Council	25
	2.	Statements by the President of the Security Council	28
	3.	Communications between the President of the Security Council and the Secretary-General	29
	4.	Meetings of the Security Council	36
	5.	Meetings of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	60
	6.	Reports of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	64
		A. Military Staff Committee	64
		B. Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission	64
		C. Annual reports of committees	64
		D. Annual reports of working groups	65
	7.	Reports of panels and monitoring mechanisms	66
	8.	Security Council missions	67
	9.	Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated	68
	10.	Special political missions established, functioning or terminated	69
	11.	Reports of the Secretary-General	70
	12.	Summary statements by the Secretary-General of matters of which the Security Council was seized.	75
	13.	Notes by the President of the Security Council	76
	14.	Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council	78
-		nsidered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of peace and security	
	1.	The situation in Cyprus	79
	2.	Items relating to the situation in the Middle East	81
		A. The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	81
		B. The situation in the Middle East.	85
		1. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force	85
		2. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)	87

	3. Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East	
	(a) Syrian Arab Republic	
	(b) Yemen	
3.	The situation concerning Western Sahara	
4.	United Nations peacekeeping operations	
5.	The situation between Iraq and Kuwait	
6.	The situation in Somalia	
7.	Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia	
	A. The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina	
	B. Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)	
8.	The question concerning Haiti	
9.	The situation in Afghanistan	
10.	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals	
11.	The situation in the Great Lakes region	
12.	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	
13.	The situation in the Central African Republic	
14.	Children and armed conflict	
15.	Protection of civilians in armed conflict	
16.	General issues relating to sanctions	
17.	Women and peace and security	
18.	Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice	
19.	Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees	
20.	Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe	
21.	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B	
	A. United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus	
	B. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force	
	C. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon	
	D. United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara	
	E. United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo	
	F. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic	
	G. United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei	
	H. United Nations Mission in South Sudan	

	I.	United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali	122		
22.	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts 1				
23.	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council				
24.	Cen	tral African region	128		
25.	Nor	n-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction	129		
26.	Rep	oorts of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	130		
27.	Pea	cebuilding and sustaining peace	133		
28.	The	situation concerning Iraq	134		
29.	Thr	eats to international peace and security	136		
30.	Nor	n-proliferation	138		
31.	Pea	ce consolidation in West Africa	142		
32.	The	situation in Myanmar	143		
33.	Nor	n-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea	144		
34.	Mai	intenance of international peace and security	146		
	A.	General issues	146		
	В.	Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)	147		
	C.	Conflict and food security	147		
	D.	Cybersecurity	148		
	E.	Strengthening accountability and justice for serious violations of international law	148		
	F.	Promoting common security through dialogue and cooperation	148		
	G.	Maritime security	148		
	H.	New orientation for reformed multilateralism	149		
35.	Pea	ce and security in Africa	150		
	А.	General issues	150		
	В.	Capacity-building for sustaining peace	151		
	C.	Strengthening the fight against the financing of armed groups and terrorists through the illicit trafficking of natural resources	151		
36.		peration between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in ntaining international peace and security	152		
37.	The	situation in Libya	153		
38.	The situation in Mali				
39.	Iten	ns relating to Ukraine	157		
	A.	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	157		
	B.	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council $(8/2014/136)$	163		

		C. Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)	16
	40.	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)	16
	41.	Letter dated 13 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Armenia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/688)	16
Part II Other 1		rs considered by the Security Council	
	1.	Annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly	1′
	2.	Election of members of the International Court of Justice	1
	3.	Items relating to Security Council documentation and working methods and procedure	1
		A. Implementation of note by the President of the Security Council (S/2017/507)	1
		B. General matters	1
Part IV Report		e Military Staff Committee	1
		ight to the attention of the Security Council but not discussed at meetings of the Council eriod covered	
	1.	Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question	1
	2.	Communications concerning the question of the Greater Tunb, Lesser Tunb and Abu Musa islands	1
	3.	Communications concerning the situation in Georgia	1
	4.	Communications concerning relations between Cameroon and Nigeria	1
	5.	Communications concerning the situation in Sierra Leone	1
	6.	Communications concerning the situation in Guinea-Bissau	1
	7.	Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)	1
	8.	Security Council resolution 1595 (2005)	1
	9.	Communications concerning the International Criminal Court	1
	10.	Communications concerning the Collective Security Treaty Organization	1
	11.	Communications concerning the League of Arab States	1
	12.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Israel	1
	13.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and the United States of America	1
	14.	Communications concerning Kazakhstan	1
	15.	Communications concerning relations between Cuba and the United States of America	1
	16.	Communications concerning relations between Kyrgyzstan and Tajikistan	1

Appendices

I.	Membership of the Security Council during the year 2022	185
II.	Representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives accredited to the Security Council.	186
III.	Presidents of the Security Council	198

Introduction

1. In 2022, the Security Council returned to its normal conduct of business in terms of working methods, after the restrictions imposed by the coronavirus (COVID-19 pandemic). There was no need to hold videoconference meetings and, in the second half of the year, closed consultations resumed in the consultations room. The Council aimed for an adequate balance between transparency and confidentiality, in line with its efforts in previous years.

2. The Council held a total of 292 formal meetings, including 276 public meetings and 16 private meetings. There were 127 closed consultations and five informal interactive dialogues. Wrap-up sessions were also held each month by Presidents of the Council. In 2022, 85 unscheduled meetings were held at the request of Council members, compared with 34 in 2021.

In 2022, the Council extended a total of 445 3. invitations under rule 39, of which 242 were to men (54 per cent) and 203 were to women (46 per cent). In addition, out of 445 invitations, 272 were extended to officials from the United Nations system, 70 to officials representing regional intergovernmental organizations and 14 to invitees from international organizations other than the United Nations, non-governmental organizations and civil society. In total, 54 per cent of the briefings were delivered by men and 46 per cent by women, compared with 44 per cent in 2021 and 34 per cent in 2020.

4. During the reporting period, the Council adopted 54 resolutions and seven presidential statements (compared with 24 in 2021) and issued 67 statements to the press. Thirty-six resolutions, or 66 per cent, were adopted unanimously. On four occasions, the casting of a veto by one or more Council members prevented the adoption of a resolution: two on Ukraine; one on Non-Proliferation/ Democratic People's Republic of Korea; and one on the Syrian Arab Republic. Pursuant to General Assembly resolution 76/262 of 26 April 2022, the Security Council submitted three special reports to the General Assembly. One resolution was adopted by the Security Council in accordance with General Assembly resolution 377 A (V).

5. The Security Council considered a total of 49 items, including two new items. The Council maintained its attention on the humanitarian consequences of the conflicts of which it is seized and their impact on civilians and children, as well as on the role of women in preventing and resolving conflict.

6. The Council also held discussions and exchanged views on a range of emerging issues, including technology and security, the nexus between conflict and food insecurity and mental health and psychosocial support of United Nations peace operations personnel.

7. The sanctions regimes remained an important tool for the Council. Ten sanctions regimes were renewed in 2022, and a new one was established for Haiti.

8. The Council adopted decisions regarding nine peacekeeping operations and eight special political missions in 2022. At the end of the year, peacekeepers were deployed across 12 missions in support of the Council's mandates. Council members noted with appreciation the contribution of United Nations peacekeepers to international peace and security and paid tribute to the 96 peacekeepers who had sacrificed their lives on the job in 2022.

9. Further information on the work of the Council and more detailed reports of its meetings can be found in the monthly assessments of its work. The goal of the present introduction is not to provide an exhaustive list of meetings, developments or responses of the Council. It is intended as a succinct and useful overview of key developments, taking into account monthly assessments and responding to the remarks made by Member States during the plenary meeting of the General Assembly on the annual report of the Council for 2021 (A/76/2), on 9 June 2022.

Africa

Burkina Faso

10. The Council paid close attention to the situation in Burkina Faso following two military takeovers. On 8 February, it held closed consultations and on 9 February, it issued a statement to the press expressing concern about the 24 January unconstitutional change of Government. On 7 October, it released a statement to the press expressing concern about the 30 September unconstitutional of Government change and underscoring the urgent need for the restoration of constitutional order in Burkina Faso in accordance with the Protocol on Democracy and Good Governance of the Economic Community of West African States.

Central African region

11. The Council held biannual meetings on the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for

Central Africa (UNOCA), on which it was briefed by the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa, Martha Ama Akyaa Pobee; the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Central Africa and Head of UNOCA, Abdou Abarry; as well as by the President of the Commission of the Economic Community of Central African States, Gilberto da Piedade Veríssimo. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Central Africa and Head of UNOCA was appointed on 28 July, replacing François Louncény Fall. The electoral processes in the region was the main point of discussion at the meetings, as well as the security situation in some affected countries.

Central African Republic

12. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on the situation in the Central African Republic.

13. In statements to the press issued on 5 October and 25 November, the Council condemned attacks perpetrated against the United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA), that had resulted in the deaths of peacekeepers from Bangladesh and Morocco.

14. The Council heard interventions from the Executive Secretary of the International Conference on the Great Lakes Region, João Samuel Caholo, and from the African Union Special Representative, Bertino Matías Matondo, during its public meeting of 22 February, as well as from the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for the Central African Republic and Head of MINUSCA, Valentine Rugwabiza, during its meetings of 22 June and 19 October.

15. By its resolution 2648 (2022), adopted on 29 July, the Council renewed the sanctions regime.

16. By its resolution 2659 (2022), adopted on 14 November, the Council extended the mandate of MINUSCA.

Democratic Republic of the Congo

17. The Council held several meetings and consultations on the situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo. The Council approved a presidential statement (S/PRST/2022/4) on 3 June in which it welcomed positive political developments, such as regional diplomatic efforts – including the second Regional Heads of State Conclave on the Democratic Republic of Congo, held in Nairobi on 21 April 2022 – to end the conflict in that country, and expressed concern over increased activities of armed groups, including the Mouvement du 23 mars (M-23). It issued statements on the situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo and on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO) on 4 February, 5 April, 24 May, 12 July and 27 July, 3 October and 22 November.

18. The Council renewed the sanctions regime and the mandate of the Group of Experts by its resolution 2641 (2022), adopted on 30 June. The mandate of MONUSCO was extended until 20 December 2023 by its resolution 2666 (2022), adopted on 20 December. By its resolution 2667 (2022), also adopted on 20 December, the Council lifted the notification requirements set out in paragraph 5 of resolution 1807 (2008).

Ethiopia

19. The Council continued to follow to the situation in the north of Ethiopia, following the outbreak of armed clashes in that region in November 2020 and their subsequent evolution, and the regional efforts to negotiate a peace agreement.

20. The Council held four meetings on the matter. On 27 January and 14 April, it held closed consultations. On 28 September, it held an informal interactive dialogue. On 21 October, it held a private meeting under the item "Peace and security in Africa", at which it was briefed by the African Union High Representative for the Horn of Africa Region, Olusegun Obasanjo, and the Director for Operations and Advocacy of the United Nations Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, Ghada Eltahir Mudawi; closed consultations were also held that day.

Great Lakes region

21. The Council held biannual meetings on recent developments in the Great Lakes region, including the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region of 2013. It issued statements to the press on this matter on 28 April and 28 October.

Libya

22. The Council continued to follow closely the situation in Libya in 2022 through regular meetings and consultations, held on 24 January, 16 March, 26 May, 27 June, 25 July, 30 August, 24 October, 15 November, and 16 December.

23. On 31 January 2022, the Security Council unanimously adopted resolution 2619 (2022), which extended the mandate of the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL) for three months, until

30 April. Subsequent three-month renewals of the mandate of UNSMIL were approved on 29 April, with the Security Council unanimously adopting resolution 2629 (2022), which also requested UNSMIL to implement the recommendations of the independent strategic review of the Mission (S/2021/716), and called upon the Secretary-General to appoint a Special Representative for Libya promptly; and on 28 July, with the adoption by the Security Council, by a vote of 12 in favour to none against, with 3 abstentions, of resolution 2647 (2022), which again underscored the urgent need to appoint a Head of Mission. Subsequently, on 28 October, the Security Council unanimously adopted resolution 2656 (2022), which extended the mandate of UNSMIL for 12 months and welcomed the appointment of Abdoulaye Bathily as Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Libya and Head of UNSMIL, who officially assumed his duties on 25 September.

24. On 20 May, the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya held informal consultations to consider the final report of its Panel of Experts, pursuant to paragraph 13 of resolution 2571 (2021), which was submitted to the Council on 25 May 2022. The Committee also met in informal consultations, on 4 November, to hear a presentation by the Panel of Experts on its work programme under the mandate extended by Council resolution 2644 (2022).

25. On 3 June, the Council, by a vote of 14 in favour to none against, with one abstention, adopted resolution 2635 (2022), which renewed the authorization for Member States – acting nationally or through regional organizations – to inspect vessels on the high seas off the coast of Libya which they have reasonable ground to believe are carrying arms or related materiel to or from that country, in violation of the arms embargo imposed on that country.

26. On 13 July, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2644 (2022), by which it extended, until 30 October 2023, the measures against the illicit export of crude oil and other petroleum products from Libya and the mandate of the Panel of Experts.

27. On 1 September, the Council issued a statement to the press condemning the violent clashes perpetrated by armed groups in Tripoli on 27 August, resulting in civilian casualties and destruction of civilian infrastructure.

28. On 29 September, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2652 (2022), which renewed for one year the authorization for Member States – acting nationally or through regional organizations – to inspect vessels on the high seas off the coast of Libya suspected

of being used for migrant smuggling and trafficking in persons in Libya.

29. On 20 December, the Council issued a statement to the press expressing concern at the persistent political deadlock, almost one year after elections were scheduled to take place on 24 December 2021, as well as support for the work of UNSMIL and the Special Representative of the Secretary-General.

Mali

30. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on Mali. It heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Mali and Head of the United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali (MINUSMA), El Ghassim Wane, and representatives of civil society organizations: Adam Dicko on 11 January; Bouaré Bintou on 7 April; and Sadya Touré on 13 June. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Mali and Head of MINUSMA also briefed the Council on 18 October.

31. By its resolution 2640 (2022), adopted on 29 June, the Council extended the mandate of MINUSMA until 30 June 2023. By its resolution 2649 (2022), adopted on 30 August, it renewed the sanctions regime with regard to Mali until 31 August 2023 and extended the mandate of the panel of experts until 30 September 2023.

32. The Committee met on 28 July to hear a presentation by the Panel of Experts on its final report, pursuant to paragraph 4 of resolution 2590 (2021), which was submitted to the Security Council on 3 August 2022. On 23 November, the Chair of the Committee briefed the Security Council on the Committee's activities, in accordance with paragraph 18 of resolution 2374 (2017).

33. The Council issued further statements to the press on 7 March, 1 and 20 June, 5 July, 17 October and 16 December, following deadly attacks against MINUSMA peacekeepers.

Somalia

34. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on the situation in Somalia. On 15 February, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Somalia and Head of the United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNSOM), James Swan; the Special Representative of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission for Somalia and Head of the African Union Mission in Somalia (AMISOM), Francisco Caetano José Madeira; and the Head of the Delegation of the European Union to the United Nations, Olof Skoog. On 23 May, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Somalia and Head of UNSOM and the Special Representative of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission for Somalia and Head of AMISOM. On 7 September, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Somalia and Head of UNSOM; the Deputy Special Representative of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission for Somalia and Acting Head of the African Union Transition Mission in Somalia (ATMIS), Fiona Lortan; and the Special Representative of the European Union for the Horn of Africa, Annette Weber. Consultations followed those meetings.

35. The Council held regular meetings on the activities of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab. On 21 June, it heard a briefing by the Chair of the Committee and Permanent Representative of Ireland to the United Nations, Geraldine Byrne Nason, covering activities from 25 February to 21 June. On 19 October, it heard a briefing by the Chair of the Committee and Permanent Representative of Ireland to the United Nations, Fergal Tomas Mythen, covering activities from 22 June to 19 October. On 12 December, it heard an assessment by the Chair of the two-year period during which the Permanent Representatives of Ireland to the United Nations chaired the Committee.

36. The Council, by its resolution 2628 (2022) unanimously adopted on 31 March, reconfigured AMISOM into the African Union Transition Mission in Somalia (ATMIS) and established a timeline for a phased handover of security responsibilities to Somalia until December 2024. On 21 December, the Security Council adopted resolution 2670 (2022) extending Phase 1 of ATMIS until 30 June 2023.

37. The Council renewed the mandate of UNSOM until 31 October by its resolution 2632 (2022), unanimously adopted on 26 May, and requested the Secretary-General to undertake a strategic review of UNSOM until 30 September. By its resolution 2657 (2022), adopted on 31 October, the Council renewed the mandate of UNSOM until 31 October 2023.

38. The Council renewed the sanctions regime with regard to Somalia until 15 November 2023 by its resolution 2662 (2022), adopted on 17 November, including the authorization for maritime interdiction to enforce the embargo on illicit arms imports, the charcoal exports ban and the improvised explosive device components ban, the partial lifting of the arms embargo for the Somali security sector and the humanitarian exemptions to the regime.

39. On 24 March, the Council issued a statement to the press following attacks by Al-Shabaab in Mogadishu and Beledweyne. On 6 May, the Council released a statement to the press following an attack by Al-Shabaab against the ATMIS Forward operating base in Elbaraf, which led to the death of Burundi National Defence Force troops. Another statement to the press was issued on 1 November following an attack by Al-Shabaab that killed at least 100 people in Mogadishu.

South Sudan

40. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on the situation in South Sudan. On 3 March, the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for South Sudan and Head of the United Nations Mission in South Sudan (UNMISS), Nicholas Haysom, briefed the Council and the troop- and policecontributing countries. On 7 March, the Council heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General in South Sudan and Head of UNMISS; the interim Chair of the reconstituted Joint Monitoring and Evaluation Commission of the Intergovernmental Authority on Development, Charles Tai Gituai; and a representative of civil society, Riya Williams Yuyada. On 20 June, the Council heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General in South Sudan and Head of UNMISS; the Acting Director of the Operations and Advocacy Division of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, Ghada Eltahir Mudawi; and a representative of civil society, Lorna Merekaje. On 16 September, the Council heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General in South Sudan and Head of UNMISS and a representative of civil society, Lilian Riziq. On 13 December, the Council heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General in South Sudan and Head of UNMISS and Mr. Gituai. Consultations followed those meetings.

41. The Council held a meeting on the activities of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan. On 13 December, the Council heard a briefing by the Chair of the Committee and Permanent Representative of Gabon to the United Nations, Michel Xavier Biang, covering the activities of the Committee in 2022.

42. The Council renewed the mandate of UNMISS until 15 March 2023 by its resolution 2625 (2022), adopted on 15 March. It renewed the sanctions regime with regard to South Sudan until 31 May 2023 by its resolution 2633 (2022), adopted on 26 May.

Sudan

43. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on the situation in the Sudan. On 28 March, 24 May and 7 December, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for the Sudan and Head of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan (UNITAMS), Volker Perthes. On 13 September, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for the Sudan and Head of UNITAMS and a representative of civil society, Ibrahim Mudawi. Consultations followed these meetings. The Council held closed meetings on 12 January and 27 April.

44. The Council heard biannual briefings on Darfur by the Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court, Karim Khan, on 17 January and 23 August. Mr. Khan presented his report pursuant to resolution 1593 (2005) and informed the Council of the latest developments in the work of his Office regarding the situation in Darfur.

The Council held regular meetings on the 45. activities of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan. On 28 March, the Chair of the Committee and Permanent Representative of Ghana to the United Nations, Harold Adlai Agyeman, briefed the Council on the activities of the Committee from 11 December 2021 to 28 March. On 21 June and on 13 September, the Council heard briefings by the Chair covering Committee activities from 29 March to 21 June and from 22 June to 13 September, respectively. On 7 December, the Deputy Permanent Representative of Ghana to the United Nations, Carolyn Oppong-Ntiri, briefed the Council on behalf of the Chair of the Committee on the activities of the Committee from 13 September to 7 December.

46. By its resolution 2620 (2022), adopted on 15 February, the Council extended until 12 March 2023 the mandate of the Panel of Experts which assists the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005). By its resolution 2636 (2022), unanimously adopted on 3 June, the Council renewed the mandate of UNITAMS until 3 June 2023 through a technical rollover.

47. The Council issued a statement to the press on 29 April following attacks against civilians, mass displacements and assaults to health-care facilities in West Darfur. It also released a statement to the press on 8 December welcoming the signing of the political framework agreement.

Sudan, South Sudan and Abyei

48. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on the situation in Abyei. On 21 April, it

heard briefings by the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations, Jean-Pierre Lacroix, and the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for the Horn of Africa, Hanna Serwaa Tetteh. On 27 October, the Council held briefings by the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for the Horn of Africa and the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa. Consultations followed those meetings.

49. By its resolution 2630 (2022), unanimously adopted on 12 May, the Council extended until 15 November the mandate of the United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA). By its resolution 2660 (2022), unanimously adopted on 14 November, the Council renewed until 15 November 2023 the mandate of UNISFA and the Force's support to the Joint Border Verification and Monitoring Mechanism.

Western Sahara

50. The Council held biannual consultations on the situation concerning Western Sahara on 20 April and 17 October.

51. By its resolution 2654 (2022), adopted on 29 October, by 13 votes in favour with two abstentions, the Council extended the mandate of the United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO) until 31 October 2023. In the same resolution, the Council emphasized the need to achieve a realistic, practicable, enduring and mutually acceptable political solution based on compromise and called upon the parties to resume negotiations under the auspices of the Secretary-General without preconditions and in good faith.

Peace consolidation in West Africa

52. The Council held biannual meetings on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (UNOWAS). At the first one, on 10 January, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for West Africa and the Sahel and Head of UNOWAS, Khatir Mahamat Saleh Annadif; the Executive Director of the United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime, Ghada Fathi Waly; and a speaker on behalf of the People's Coalition for the Sahel, Cécile Thiombiano Yougbaré. At the second meeting, held on 7 July, it heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for West Africa and the Sahel and Head of UNOWAS: the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission, Rabab Fatima; and a speaker on behalf of the People's Coalition for the Sahel, Rabia Djibo Magagi.

Peace and security in Africa

53. On 31 May, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2634 (2022), on piracy and armed robbery at sea in the Gulf of Guinea.

Group of Five for the Sahel

54. Under the item "Peace and Security in Africa", the Council held biannual meetings and consultations on the Group of Five for the Sahel. On 18 May, it heard briefings by the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa in the Departments of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and Peace Operations; the Executive Secretary of the Group of Five for the Sahel, Eric Tiaré; and the Coordinator and President of the Rights and Resources Initiative/Group, Solange Bandiaky-Badji. On 16 November, in addition to briefings by Assistant Secretary-General for Africa and the Executive Secretary, it also heard from a civil society representative, Zakaria Ousman Ramadan.

Americas

Colombia

55. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on Colombia, which included briefings from the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Colombia and Head of the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia, Carlos Ruiz Massieu, and representatives of civil society. It issued statements to the press on 27 January, 22 July and 14 October, in which the members of the Council reiterated their full and unanimous support for the peace process in Colombia. Council members also commended the announcement on the resumption of talks between the Government and the Ejército de Liberación Nacional.

56. On 27 October, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2655 (2022), by which it extended the mandate of the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia until 31 October 2023, and requested the Secretary-General provide detailed to recommendations, within 45 days of the adoption of the resolution, on how the verification of the ethnic and rural chapters of the Final Agreement for Ending the Conflict and Building a Stable and Lasting Peace would be carried out, as requested by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of Colombia. On 9 December, the Secretary-General recommended that the Security Council respond positively to the request conveyed by the Government of Colombia and authorize the addition of those tasks to the mandate of the Verification Mission (S/2022/940).

Haiti

57. The Council held regular meetings and consultations on the situation in Haiti. On 29 April, the Secretary-General issued a letter to the Security Council (S/2022/369), conveying his findings regarding the assessment conducted on the mandate of the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (BINUH), as requested in resolution 2600 (2021).

58. On 15 July, the Council extended the mandate of BINUH for one year, unanimously adopting its resolution 2645 (2022). Given the deteriorating security situation in Haiti, the Council called on Member States to prohibit the transfer of small arms, light weapons and ammunition to non-State actors engaged in or supporting gang violence, criminal activities or human rights abuses in Haiti. The Council expressed readiness to take appropriate measures, as necessary, that could include asset freeze or travel ban measures against those engaged in or supporting gang violence, criminal activities or human rights abuses within 90 days from the adoption of the resolution. The Council also requested the Secretary-General to consult with the Government of Haiti, relevant countries and regional organizations on possible options for enhanced security support for the Haitian National Police. The Secretary-General submitted a report to the Council on those consultations in a letter to the President of the Security Council dated 8 October 2022 (S/2022/747).

59. On 21 October, the Council unanimously approved a sanctions regime for Haiti, by adopting resolution 2653 (2022). Besides an arms embargo, the resolution includes sanctions such as assets freeze and travel bans against those engaging in or supporting criminal activity and violence. The resolution specifically sanctions gang leader, Jimmy Cherizier, known by his alias "Barbecue".

60. On 21 December, the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022) concerning Haiti was established, with the Permanent Representative of Gabon, Michel Xavier Biang as its Chair. The Council also heard a briefing from the Deputy Secretary-General, Amina Mohammed, detailing the humanitarian challenges and the security concerns faced by the Haitian population.

Asia

Afghanistan

61. The Council held quarterly debates on Afghanistan on 2 March, 23 June, 27 September and 20 December. In addition, it held meetings on the evolving situation in Afghanistan on 26 January, 25 March, 12 May and 29 August. 62. On 17 March, the Council adopted resolution 2626 (2022), on the mandate of the United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA), updating and renewing it for one year and requesting the Secretary-General to report to the Council every three months.

63. On 6 October, the Secretary-General appointed Roza Otunbayeva as his Special Representative for Afghanistan and Head of UNAMA.

64. On 16 December, acting under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2665 (2022), by which it renewed by one year the mandate of the Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team with regard to sanctions against Taliban-linked entities in Afghanistan.

65. The Council issued statements to the press on Afghanistan on 27 March; 20, 22, 29 and 30 April; 24 May; and 1, 2 and 27 December.

Myanmar

66. The Council held private meetings on Myanmar on 28 January and 27 May. It also held consultations on 16 September.

67. The Council issued statements to the press on 2 February and, in reaction to the execution of opposition activists, on 27 July.

68. On 21 December, the Council adopted resolution 2669 (2022), by which it demanded the end of all forms of violence, urged the military to release arbitrarily detained prisoners, reiterated the necessity for full, safe and unhindered humanitarian access and expressed support for the central role of the Association of Southeast Asian Nations.

Armenia and Azerbaijan

69. The Council met on 14 September, in closed consultations, to discuss recent border clashes between Armenia and Azerbaijan. On 15 September, the Assistant Secretary-General for Europe, Central Asia and the Americas, Miroslav Jenča, briefed the Council about developments on the ground.

70. On 20 December, another meeting was convened during which the Assistant Secretary-General briefed the Council on ongoing restrictions of movement along the Lachin corridor. The issue had also been discussed briefly in closed consultations on 16 December.

United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia

71. The Council held biannual consultations on 27 January and 28 July.

Europe

Bosnia and Herzegovina

72. The Council held meetings on the situation of Bosnia and Herzegovina on 11 May and 2 November. On 2 November, it adopted resolution 2658 (2022), which authorized the renewal of the European Union military operation for an additional 12 months.

Cyprus

73. The Council met for consultations on the situation in Cyprus on 17 January and 18 July.

74. On 21 January, the Council adopted resolution 2618 (2022), which extended the mandate of the United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP) until 31 July 2022. On 28 July, it adopted resolution 2646 (2022), extending the mandate of UNFICYP for an additional six months.

Kosovo

75. On 20 April and 18 October, the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Kosovo and Head of the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (UNMIK), Caroline Ziadeh, briefed the Council on the latest developments in Kosovo and the efforts by UNMIK to mediate dialogue between Belgrade and Pristina.

Ukraine

76. The Council met 46 times to discuss aspects of the conflict in Ukraine under different items. There was also a private meeting on 27 October, after which the Council issued an official communiqué.

77. On 27 February, the Council adopted resolution 2623 (2022), calling for an emergency special session of the General Assembly on the conflict in Ukraine. Four other draft resolutions related to the crisis were not adopted by the Council.

78. On 6 May, the President of the Security Council issued a statement (S/PRST/2022/3) expressing deep concern regarding the maintenance of peace and security in Ukraine and strong support for the efforts of the Secretary-General in the search for a peaceful solution to the conflict.

Middle East

Iraq

79. The Council held periodic meetings and consultations, with the participation of the Special

Representative of the Secretary-General for Iraq and Head of the United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI), Jeanine Hennis-Plasschaert, on 24 February, 17 May and 4 October, which were convened pursuant to resolutions 2576 (2021) and 2631 (2022) to examine the progress in the implementation of the mandate of UNAMI, adopted under Chapter VI of the Charter of the United Nations upon the request of the Government of Iraq.

80. On 24 January, the Security Council issued a statement to the press condemning the 21 January terrorist attack in Diyala Province, Iraq, which resulted in at least 11 deaths.

81. On 22 February, the Security Council unanimously adopted resolution 2621 (2022), which confirmed that the United Nations Compensation Commission had fulfilled its mandate in processing claims and paying compensation for losses and damage suffered by Kuwait as a direct result of the unlawful invasion and occupation of its territory by Iraq in 1990.

82. On 3 March, the Security Council, through its Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003), removed seven entries from its sanctions list; on 19 May three additional entries were removed; and, on 30 August, one entry was removed from the list.

83. On 26 May, the Security Council unanimously adopted resolution 2631 (2022), which extended the mandate of UNAMI for one year, until 31 May 2023, retaining its main functions, upon the request of the Government of Iraq, including the core task of UNAMI of prioritizing the provision of advice, support and assistance on advancing political dialogue and national and community-level reconciliation in Iraq.

84. On 8 June and 5 December, the Security Council was briefed by the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (ISIL) (UNITAD), Christian Ritscher, on the eighth (S/2022/434) and ninth reports (S/2022/836) of UNITAD, including progress in the investigation of international crimes committed by ISIL (Da'esh) in Iraq and the corresponding cooperation with Iraqi authorities.

85. On 25 July, the Security Council issued a statement to the press condemning the attack in Dohuk Governorate on 20 July 2022, in the autonomous Kurdistan Region of Iraq, which resulted in the death of at least nine civilians, including children.

86. On 26 July, the Security Council met for an open briefing, followed by closed consultations, to discuss the 20 July attack in Dohuk Governorate, in the autonomous Kurdistan Region of Iraq. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Iraq and Head of UNAMI briefed the Council. The Minister for Foreign Affairs of Iraq, Fuad Hussein, represented Iraq during the briefing.

87. On 1 September, the Security Council issued a statement to the press condemning the violence throughout Iraq on 29 and 30 August, which reportedly resulted in deaths and injuries, as well as taking note of the efforts by the Government of Iraq to restore order.

88. On 15 September, the Security Council unanimously adopted resolution 2651 (2022), which extended the mandate of UNITAD for one year, until 17 September 2023, upon the request of the Government of Iraq, to continue assisting Iraq in the investigation of international crimes committed by ISIL (Da'esh) in Iraqi territory.

89. On 20 December, the Security Council issued a statement to the press condemning terrorist attacks near Kirkuk and Albu Bali, in Iraq, claimed by ISIL (Da'esh) and which resulted in the deaths of at least nine Iraqi policemen and eight civilians.

Lebanon

90. On 4 February, the Council issued a statement to the press on the overall situation in Lebanon, underlining the importance of holding free, fair, transparent and inclusive elections as scheduled on 15 May 2022 and of adopting urgent reform measures. They also deplored the incidents that took place in December 2021 and January 2022 in the area of operations of the United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL) and recalled the necessity for all parties to ensure that UNIFIL personnel are safe and secure and their freedom of movement is fully respected and unimpeded. On 25 May, the Council issued a follow-up statement to the press, welcoming the holding of legislative elections in Lebanon as scheduled, despite challenging circumstances, and calling for the swift formation of a new inclusive Government and the urgent implementation of tangible reforms. On 7 July, another statement to the press was issued calling for the swift formation of a new Government in Lebanon.

91. On 31 August, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2650 (2022), by which it extended the mandate of UNIFIL until 31 August 2023.

92. On 19 October, the Council issued a statement to the press in which its members commended the announcement that Lebanon and Israel had agreed to end their dispute over their maritime boundary and delineate it permanently. 93. On 15 December, the Council issued a statement to the press condemning, in the strongest terms, the attack perpetrated against UNIFIL on 14 December in the area of Al-Aqbieh, in south Lebanon, which resulted in the death of one peacekeeper from Ireland and in injuries to three peacekeepers. They reiterated their full support for UNIFIL and called on the Government of Lebanon to swiftly investigate this attack and bring perpetrators to justice in accordance with Lebanese law.

Syrian Arab Republic

94. The three aspects of the Syrian crisis (political, humanitarian and chemical weapons) were regularly examined by the Council throughout 2022.

95. On 12 July, the Council adopted resolution 2642 (2022), by 12 votes in favour with three abstentions, by which it renewed the United Nations cross-border mechanism authorization for six months, that is, until 10 January 2023, only for the border crossing at Bab al-Hawa, with a further extension of additional six months, that is, until 10 July 2023, which will require a separate resolution confirming this extension; and requested the Secretary-General to provide a special report on the humanitarian needs in the Syrian Arab Republic. The resolution encouraged the convening of Security Council informal interactive dialogues every two months with the participation of donors, interested regional parties and representatives of the international humanitarian agencies operating in the Syrian Arab Republic. Informal interactive dialogues were held on 26 September, 21 November and 16 December.

96. The Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Syria, Geir Otto Pedersen, briefed Council members on the developments towards the implementation of resolution 2254 (2015).

97. The Under-Secretary-General and High Representative for Disarmament Affairs, Izumi Nakamitsu, also briefed the Council regularly on the implementation of resolution 2118 (2013) and the relevant work of the Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons. The members of the Council consistently condemned the use of chemical weapons under any pretext, anywhere and by anyone.

The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

98. The Council continued to hold regular open debates, briefings and consultations on the situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question, as well as quarterly briefings on the implementation of resolution 2334 (2016). The Special Coordinator for the

Middle East Peace Process, Tor Wennesland, briefed the Council on those occasions.

99. On 19 April, the Council held an emergency meeting (consultations) following the escalation of violence in Jerusalem. On 8 August, the Council held an emergency open briefing, followed by consultations, to discuss developments in Gaza.

100. On 13 May, the Council issued a statement to the press in which its members strongly condemned the killing of Palestinian-American journalist Shireen Abu Akleh and the injury of another journalist in the Palestinian city of Jenin on 11 May and called for an immediate, thorough, transparent, and fair and impartial investigation into her killing, stressing the need for accountability.

Yemen

101. The Council received monthly briefings on the political, security and humanitarian situation in Yemen from the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Yemen, Hans Grundberg, as well as from the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs and the Head of the United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA) and Chair of the Redeployment Coordination Committee, Major General Michael Beary.

102. On 28 February, the Council adopted resolution 2624 (2022) by 11 votes in favour with 4 abstentions, by which it renewed the sanctions regime applicable to Yemen for an additional year, designated the Houthis as an entity under the targeted arms embargo, strongly condemned the cross-border terrorist attacks by the group and extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts on Yemen until 28 March 2023.

103. On 13 July, the Council adopted resolution 2643 (2022), by which it extended the mandate of UNMHA until 14 July 2023 and, among other provisions, welcomed the establishment of UNMHA presence in government-controlled areas, in order to ensure its equal access and impartial assistance to all parties, and demanded the Houthis to guarantee the freedom of movement of UNMHA personnel, including by allowing announced and unannounced patrols.

104. In 2022, the Council issued eight statements to the press on the situation in Yemen.

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

105. The Council adopted resolution 2639 (2022) on 27 June, by which it renewed the mandate of the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF) in the Golan until 31 December 2022. On 22 December,

the Council adopted resolution 2671 (2022), by which it renewed the mandate of UNDOF until 30 June 2023.

Thematic questions

United Nations peacekeeping operations

106. On 12 July, the Council held an open debate on "United Nations peacekeeping operations: the key role of strategic communications for efficient peacekeeping". During the meeting, presided by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of Brazil, Carlos Alberto Franco França, the Council heard briefings by the Secretary-General, António Guterres; the Force Commander of the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo, Lieutenant General Marcos De Sá Affonso Da Costa; and the Director of Research at the International Peace Institute, Jenna Russo. At the same meeting, the Council adopted a presidential statement on the matter (S/PRST/2022/5).

107. On 6 September, the Council held its annual ministerial-level open debate on peacekeeping reform pursuant to resolution 2378 (2017), with a focus on the implementation of the Action for Peacekeeping initiative. The Council was briefed by the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations.

108. On 14 November, the Council held its annual briefing with the heads of police components of United Nations peace operations, during which it heard briefings by the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations; the Police Commissioner of the United Nations Mission in South Sudan, Christine Fossen; the Police Commissioner of the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo, Mody Berethe; and a representative of the Kofi Annan International Peacekeeping Training Centre in Ghana, Emma Birikorang.

109. On 21 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2668 (2022) on the mental health and psychosocial support for United Nations peace operations personnel, encouraging troop- and police-contributing countries, including Member States and the United Nations Secretariat, as appropriate, to provide mental health services training to support personnel during predeployment, deployment and post-deployment.

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

110. On 31 March, the Council issued a presidential statement (S/PRST/2022/2), by which it requested the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to present by 14 April the report on the

progress of its work, including towards the completion of its functions, since its previous review in June 2020.

111. On 14 June, the President of the Mechanism, Carmel Agius, and its Prosecutor, Serge Brammertz, presented the fourth review report (S/2022/319) and the twentieth assessment and progress report of the Residual Mechanism to the Council. In preparation for this meeting, Gabon, as Chair of the Informal Working Group on International Tribunals, convened exchanges of views with the President of the Mechanism and the Prosecutor of the Mechanism on 13 June.

112. On 22 June, having conducted its biennial review of the progress of the work of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals, including in completing its functions, pursuant to paragraph 17 of resolution 1966 (2010) and in accordance with the procedure set out in the presidential statement of 31 March 2022 (S/PRST/2022/2), the Council adopted resolution 2637 (2022). In the resolution, the Council reappointed Serge Brammertz as Prosecutor of the Mechanism, for a term of two years with effect from 1 July 2022. It also welcomed the fourth review report submitted by the Mechanism to the Council (S/2022/319) and the report of the Office of Internal Oversight Services on the evaluation of the methods and work of the Mechanism (S/2022/148).

113. On 12 December, the new President of the Mechanism Judge Graciela Gatti Santana, appointed by the Secretary-General on 27 June 2022 as for a term from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2024, and the Prosecutor presented the twenty-first assessment and progress report of the Residual Mechanism to the Council. Before this meeting, the Chair of the Informal Working Group on International Tribunals convened exchanges of views with the President and the Prosecutor of the Mechanism on 9 December.

Children and armed conflict

114. On 19 July 2022, the Council held a high-level open debate on children and armed conflict. The Council heard a briefing from the Executive Director of the United Nations Children's Fund and the Special Representative of the Secretary-General on Children and Armed Conflict, as well as from a civil society representative and former child soldier, Patrick Kumi.

115. In 2022, the Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict adopted conclusions on children and armed conflict in the Central African Republic, Colombia, the Democratic Republic of Congo, the Philippines, the Sudan and Yemen. In 2022, the Working Group also worked on conclusions on Afghanistan, Myanmar, Nigeria, Somalia and the Syrian Arab Republic. The Working Group also discussed other situations of concern as included in the global horizontal notes from the Secretary-General and his report.

Protection of civilians in armed conflict

116. On 25 January, the Council held a high-level open debate on the theme "War in cities: protection of civilians in urban settings". The Council heard briefings by the Secretary-General, the President of the International Committee of the Red Cross, Peter Maurer and the Chair and co-founder of the Mwatana Organization for Human Rights, Radhya al-Mutawakel. The briefers highlighted the need to ensure accountability for perpetrators of violations of international law and ensure compliance with international humanitarian law in order to mitigate the devastating effects of urban warfare on civilian populations. More than 50 ministers, observers and representatives - some from conflictaffected States or regions - shared their perspectives and ideas of how to reduce harm to civilians in urban warfare situations. Member States underscored the importance of resolution 2573 (2021) on attacks on critical infrastructure and the report of the Secretary-General on protection of civilians in armed conflict (S/2021/423) as guidance for the protection of civilians in conflict-ridden urban settings.

117. On 25 May, the Council held its annual open debate about the protection of civilians in armed conflict following the publication of the report of the Secretary-General on the matter (S/2022/381). The Council was briefed by the Director of Coordination in the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, Ramesh Rajasingham; the Director-General of the International Committee of the Red Cross, Robert Mardini; the President of the International Rescue Committee, David Miliband; and the Country Director for the Democratic Republic of the Congo at Women for Women International, Rachel Boketa. Despite a general understanding that there are already many legal instruments for ensuring the protection of civilians and safe and unhindered access to humanitarian relief, including Security Council resolutions, many member States pointed out ongoing violations to international humanitarian law and international human rights law, as well as practical hurdles to the work of humanitarian personnel. This includes attacks on civilians, humanitarian workers and civilian infrastructures, such as schools, hospitals, water and sanitation services and energy infrastructure. Several delegations recalled that the dire situation of civilians in conflict-ridden areas was worsened by the COVID-19 pandemic and various obstacles to the delivery of vaccines.

118. The United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, Filippo Grandi, briefed the Council on 2 November. The briefing focused on the situation of refugees in several country-specific situations related to matters of which the Security Council is seized, as well as on current and emerging challenges that aggravate current trends in forced displacement. The High Commissioner called upon member States to secure adequate resources for coping with the growing refugee crises and to preserve humanitarian access. The Commissioner also highlighted the importance of the Global Compact on Refugees and the upcoming Global Refugee Forum, to be held in 2023.

General issues relating to sanctions

119. On 7 February, an open debate on general issues relating to sanctions preventing their humanitarian and unintended consequences was held at the Security Council. The Council heard briefings by the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, Rosemary DiCarlo, and the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator, Martin Griffiths. The briefers explained how aligning domestic legislation with Security Council language can alleviate the burden on humanitarian providers for compliance with due diligence and reporting requirements. They also welcomed the humanitarian carveout adopted in resolution 2615 (2021) regarding the sanctions regimes on Afghanistan. Delegates emphasized the need to minimize the unintended negative impact of sanctions on populations they are meant to protect.

120. On 9 December, by a vote of 14 in favour and one abstention, the Security Council adopted resolution 2664 (2022), whereby a humanitarian exemption to asset freeze measures applies across United Nations sanctions regimes, but only for an initial period of two years for the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities. The exemption allows for the provision, processing or payment of funds, other financial assets or economic resources or the provision of goods and services necessary to ensure the timely delivery of humanitarian assistance and support to basic human needs in contexts where United Nations sanctions are in place.

Women and peace and security

121. Albania, Brazil, France, Ireland, Gabon, Kenya, Mexico, the Niger, Norway, the United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland formed a group of countries committed to prioritizing the advancement of the women and peace and security agenda during their respective presidency months. Five open debates on women and peace and security were organized during the presidencies of Albania, Gabon, Norway, the United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom.

122. On 18 January, a ministerial-level open debate entitled "Protecting participation: addressing violence targeting women in peace and security processes" was chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of Norway, Anniken Huitfeldt, with briefings from the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights, Michelle Bachelet; the Executive Director of the Women and Children Legal Research Foundation, Zarqa Yaftali; and the Executive Director of the NGO Working Group on Women, Peace and Security, Kaavya Asoka.

123. On 8 March, the Council held a ministerial-level open debate on enabling public-private partnerships to contribute to women's economic empowerment in conflict-affected and fragile settings, chaired by the Minister of Climate Change and Environment of the United Arab Emirates, Mariam bint Mohammed Saeed Hareb Almheiri.

124. On 13 April, the Security Council held its annual open debate on conflict-related sexual violence. The meeting was entitled "Accountability as prevention: ending cycles of sexual violence in conflict" and chaired by the Minister of State for South Asia, North Africa, the United Nations and the Commonwealth at the Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and Special Representative of the Prime Minister of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland on Preventing Sexual Violence in Conflict, Lord Ahmad of Wimbledon.

125. On 15 June, a ministerial-level open debate on the role of regional organizations in implementing the women and peace and security agenda in contexts of political turmoil and seizures of power by force was chaired by the Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs of Albania, Olta Xhaçka.

126. On 20 October, the Security Council held its annual open debate on women and peace and security under the presidency of Gabon which was entitled "Women and peace and security: strengthening women's resilience and leadership as a path to peace in regions plagued by armed groups".

Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice

127. On 26 October, the Council heard a briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice, Judge Joan Donoghue, at a private meeting. Judge Joan Donohue told the Council about the challenges the Court faces for not having its jurisdiction recognized by all Member States and means of enforcement of its decisions. Judge Donohue also explained how the Court can exercise its jurisdiction in contentious cases. Members of the Council highlighted the importance of the Court in the peaceful settlement of disputes between States and the promotion of the rule of law in the international community. Members of the Council also acknowledged the complementarity between the Council and the Court in their pursuit to achieve the main objectives of the United Nations.

Election of a member of the International Court of Justice

128. On 4 November, the Council held a meeting, independent and concurrently with the General Assembly, in which it elected Leonardo Nemer Caldeira Brant of Brazil to fill the vacancy in the International Court of Justice caused by the death of Judge Antônio Augusto Cançado Trindade on 29 May.

Referrals to the International Criminal Court

129. On 17 January and 23 August, the Council held semi-annual meetings on the International Criminal Court in relation to Darfur, during which the Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court, Karim Khan, presented his reports pursuant to resolution 1593 (2005), providing an update on the latest developments in the work carried out by his Office regarding the situation in Darfur.

130. On 28 April and 9 November, the Council held semi-annual meetings on the International Criminal Court in relation to Libya, during which the Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court, Karim Khan, presented his reports pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011), providing an update on the work carried out by his Office regarding the situation in Libya.

Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

131. The Council held semi-annual briefings on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security on 9 February and 9 August. The briefings followed the release of biannual reports thereon by the Secretary-General. During the briefings, delegations voiced concerns on the persistent high number of

reported terrorist incidents and over alarming trends of their geographical spread, particularly with regard to the African continent.

132. On 6 October, the Security Council held a debate on the fight against the financing of armed groups and terrorists through the illicit trafficking of natural resources. The Minister for Foreign Affairs of Gabon, Michael Moussa Adamo, chaired the debate. The Executive Director of the United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime (UNODC), Ghada Waly, the African Union Commissioner for Political Affairs, Peace and Security, Bankole Adeoye, and the Regional Director for East Africa and Representative to the African Union of the Institute for Security Studies, Paul-Simon Handy, briefed the Council on trends regarding the illicit trafficking of natural resources, including wildlife, for the financing of terrorism and organized crime. Member States referred to a wide array of instruments the Security Council and the international community as a whole could resort to in order to curtail the illicit trafficking of natural resources in Africa and prevent it from providing terrorist and armed groups with a source of income. Delegations also commented on the distinction between terrorism and transnational organized crime.

133. On 10 November, the President of Ghana, Nana Akufo-Addo, chaired a high-level debate at the Security Council on counter-terrorism in Africa. The Deputy Secretary-General; the Chairperson of the African Union Commission, Moussa Faki Mahamat; the Managing Director for Common Security and Defence Policy and Crisis Response at the European External Action Service, Benedikta Von Seherr-Thoss; and the President and Chief Executive Officer of the International Crisis Group, Comfort Ero, briefed the Council. During the debate, delegations reflected on the role that United Nations missions in Africa can play in supporting regional counter-terrorism efforts; on how the United Nations can assist in building resilience among Member States in Africa in the face of terrorism and violent extremism, as and when conducive to terrorism, including in the Sahel region and Coastal West Africa; and on possible sources of funding for support to counter-terrorism in Africa. The contribution of regional initiatives to the maintenance of peace and security in Africa also featured prominently in the discussions. There was wide consensus on the need for the international community to address the conditions leading to terrorism and violent extremism as and when conducive to terrorism.

134. On 23 November, the Council received the annual joint briefing by its Committees established pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015)

(ISIL (Da'esh) and Al-Qaida); 1373 (2001) (Counterterrorism); and 1540 (2004) (proliferation of nuclear, chemical and biological weapons), respectively. The Chairs of the three Committees provided information on their activities during the current year and on the cooperation between them to combat terrorism and proliferation. Delegations acknowledged the role sanctions play in the maintenance of international peace, but expressed concerns over their unintended negative consequences for the civilian population.

135. On 15 December, the Council held a briefing entitled "Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts: global counter-terrorism approach - principles and the way forward". The Minister for Foreign Affairs of India, Subrahmanyam Jaishankar, chaired the meeting. The Under-Secretary-General of the Office of Counter-Terrorism, Vladimir Voronkov, the Acting Executive Director of Counter-Terrorism Committee Executive Directorate, Weixiong Chen, and a victim of terrorism, Anjali Vijay Kulthe, briefed the Council. The senior United Nations officials underlined the need for member States to address the drivers of radicalization to violence and counter the threat posed by the use of new and emerging technologies for terrorist purposes, while ensuring that any measures taken to counter terrorism comply with their obligations under international law. Delegations concurred in the importance of responding to the threat of terrorism in a comprehensive manner, including by addressing its root causes. On the occasion, the Council adopted a presidential statement on the threats international peace and security caused by terrorist acts (S/PRST/2022/7).

136. On 4 and 17 January, the Council removed five individuals and three entities, respectively, from the ISIL (Da'esh) and Al-Qaida Sanctions List. Following reviews by the Ombudsperson, the Council removed one individual on 24 January and two more on 3 March. On 7 March, the Council added one entity to the ISIL (Da'esh) and Al-Qaida Sanctions List.

137. The Council issued statements to the press on the terrorist attacks in the United Arab Emirates on 21 January; in Iraq on 24 January; in Pakistan on 6 March; MINUSMA on 7 March; in Somalia on 24 March; against Saudi Arabia on 4 April; in Afghanistan on 20 and 22 April; in Pakistan on 28 April; in Afghanistan on 29 and 30 April; against ATMIS on 6 May; against MINUSMA on 1 and 20 June and 5 July; in Afghanistan on 3, 7 and 30 September; against MINUSMA on 17 October; in Yemen on 26 October; in Somalia on 1 November; in Afghanistan against the Embassy of Pakistan on 2 December; against MINUSMA on 16 December; and in Iraq on 18 December.

Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction

138. On 25 February, the Council adopted resolution 2622 (2022), extending the mandate of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) and its Group of Experts, until 30 November 2022.

139. On 30 November, the Council, acting under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, unanimously adopted resolution 2663 (2022), extending the mandate of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) and its Group of Experts for 10 years, until 30 November 2032. The Council also endorsed the 2022 comprehensive review of the status of the implementation of resolution 1540 (2004), taking note of its results, as contained in the final report, and encouraged the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) to convene regular open briefings for Member States and international, regional and subregional organizations, inter alia, on the margins of the relevant sessions of the General Assembly.

Non-proliferation (Islamic Republic of Iran)

140. During meetings held in June and December, the Council discussed the implementation of its resolution 2231 (2015), by which it had endorsed the Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action on the Iranian nuclear issue. Some Council members expressed their support for ongoing talks to revive the full implementation of the Plan of Action and called upon all parties to refrain from actions that could jeopardize a possible agreement.

Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

141. The Council discussed the situation in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea on 10 January, 3 February, 25 March, 11 and 26 May, 5 October, 4 and 21 November, following missile launches. On 25 March, the Council adopted resolution 2627 (2022), by which it renewed the mandate of the Panel of Experts until 30 April 2023. On 24 February, 27 May, 30 August and 28 November, the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006) concerning the Democratic People's Republic of Korea held consultations.

Maintenance of international peace and security

142. On 2 June, the Council held a high-level debate on "Strengthening accountability and justice for serious violations of international law". The President of the International Court of Justice, Judge Joan Donoghue, the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights, Michelle Bachelet, and Professor Dapo Akande from the University of Oxford briefed the Council. The debate centred on the role of the Security Council in ensuring accountability for serious violations of international law; its cooperation in this respect with the International Court of Justice, the Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights and regional and subregional organizations and initiatives; the contribution of the media and civil society to the fight against impunity; and means of reparations for victims.

143. On 22 August, the Council held a briefing on "Maintenance of international peace and security: promoting common security through dialogue and cooperation". The Council heard briefings by the Secretary-General, and by the President of the Tenth Review Conference of the Treaty on the Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons, Gustavo Zlauvinen. The briefers highlighted the need to strengthen the international peace and security architecture against the backdrop of a deteriorating security environment and the persistence of the threat posed by nuclear weapons. Delegations expressed their views on fundamental issues concerning international security and nuclear disarmament.

Conflict and food security

144. On 19 May, the Security Council held an open debate on conflict and food security. The Secretary-General; the Executive Director of the World Food Programme, David Beasley; the Director-General of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, Qu Dongyu; and the Chief Executive Officer of Gro Intelligence, Sara Menker, briefed the Council. Briefers warned that an international food availability crisis could arise as soon as 2023. There was a general understanding among Council members that global food security was deteriorating, including in countries affected by conflicts. Delegates also agreed that more needs to be done to alleviate hunger and food insecurity in those countries and reverse the current trend, especially in the framework of Council resolution 2417 (2018), taking into account that conflict is a main driver of food insecurity. Briefers, Council members and participants in accordance with rule 37 discussed different aspects of the global food security situation. Among them, the logistical challenges imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic; the international rise in food prices, including as a result of ongoing conflicts, growing humanitarian needs and access barriers to assistance delivery; and the impact of trade policies, sanctions and unilateral measures in food security. Member States also exchanged views on possible measures to strengthen food security in countries affected by conflict, namely the promotion of better early-warning systems, more resilient agrifood systems and adequate funding and access for humanitarian assistance.

145. On 15 September, an open briefing was held by the Security Council on conflict and food security, following the issuance of a white note by the Office for Coordination of Humanitarian affairs on the risk of conflict-induced famine in Ethiopia, northern Nigeria, South Sudan and Yemen, in accordance with the mandate established by Security Council resolution 2417 (2018). The Council was briefed by the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator; the Executive Director of the World Food Programme, David Beasley; and the Chief Economist of the Food and Agriculture Organization, Maximo Torero. The briefers emphasized multiple challenges for improving food security, such as disruption of food systems, destruction of essential infrastructure for agricultural production, macroeconomic shocks and price- and access-related barriers for the provision of humanitarian assistance. Council members stressed the importance of advancing the framework created by resolution 2417 (2018), utilizing white notes as early-warnings to promote action to avoid and reverse the risk of famine and ensuring the full implementation of the resolution, especially with regard to the unhindered delivery of humanitarian assistance and the respect for international humanitarian law. They also discussed possible ways to better promote food security and durable peace in conflict-affected countries. In this respect, member States highlighted the need to ensure accountability for violations of international humanitarian law and resolution 2417 (2018) and to strengthen cooperation with regional organizations.

Climate and security in Africa

146. On 12 October, the Council held a high-level debate on the theme "Threats to international peace and security: climate and security in Africa", chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of Gabon, Michael Moussa Adamo. The meeting was focused on discussing climate change and peace and security in Africa.

Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

147. On 27 July, two representatives of the Peacebuilding Commission briefed the Council on peacebuilding and sustaining peace, the Permanent Representative of Egypt to the United Nations and Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission in 2021, Osama Abdelkhalek, and the Chargé d'Affaires of Bangladesh and current Chair of the Commission, Md Monwar Hossain. The meeting on peacebuilding offered an opportunity to (a) provide the Council with an overview of the Peacebuilding Commission geographic engagements and thematic discussions in 2021 by presenting the annual report of the Commission; (b) present the 2022 programme of work of the Commission to members of the Council and (c) foster the debate on ways to improve and strengthen cooperation between the United Nations and the Commission.

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

148. On 23 March, the Security Council held a highlevel open briefing on the theme "Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security (League of Arab States)" chaired by the Minister of State at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation of the United Arab Emirates, Khalifa Shaheen Almarar. The Council was briefed by the Secretary-General; the Secretary-General of the League of Arab States, Ahmed Aboul Gheit; and a representative of civil society, Razan Alaqil.

149. On 16 June, the Security Council met under the item "Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security (European Union)" chaired by the Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs of Albania, Olta Xhaçka. The council was briefed by the High Representative of the European Union for Foreign Affairs and Security Policy and Vice-President of the European Commission, Josep Borrell.

150. On 11 October, the Council held a high-level debate on the cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security (African Union), chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of Gabon, Michael Moussa Adamo. The Council was briefed by the Secretary-General and the Chairperson of the African Union Commission, Moussa Faki Mahamat.

151. On 14 October, the Council held its sixteenth annual joint consultative meeting between members of the Security Council and those of the Peace and Security Council of the African Union. The meeting discussed issues on strengthening the African Union and United Nations peacekeeping in Africa, the situation in West Africa and the Sahel, the Great Lakes region, as well as application of sanctions in conflict situations in Africa. A joint communiqué was adopted on that occasion.

Working methods

152. On 28 June, the Council held its annual open debate on its working methods under the item entitled "Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council (S/2017/507)". The discussion focused on a variety of topics, including on how to increase efficiency, effectiveness, transparency and inclusivity in the work of the Council, how to improve the fair distribution of penholdership and related working methods, how to ensure the full implementation of the note by the President, and the subsequent presidential notes, and the Council's preparedness for future extraordinary circumstances, such as the COVID-19 pandemic. In this regard, the outgoing five elected members of the Council for 2022, India, Ireland, Kenya, Mexico and Norway transmitted a letter dated 29 December 2022 (S/2022/1011) on the working methods of the Security Council during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Part I Activities relating to all questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security

Chapter 1

Resolutions adopted by the Security Council

Resolution number	• Date of adoption	Subject	Draft resolution
2618 (2022)	27 January	The situation in Cyprus	S/2022/52
2619 (2022)	31 January	The situation in Libya	S/2022/69
2620 (2022)	15 February	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2022/111
2621 (2022)	22 February	The situation between Iraq and Kuwait	S/2022/136
2622 (2022)	25 February	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction	S/2022/147
2623 (2022)	27 February	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)	S/2022/160
2624 (2022)	28 February	The situation in the Middle East	S/2022/158
2625 (2022)	15 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2022/219
2626 (2022)	17 March	The situation in Afghanistan	S/2022/237
2627 (2022)	25 March	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea	S/2022/263
2628 (2022)	31 March	The situation in Somalia	S/2022/277
2629 (2022)	29 April	The situation in Libya	S/2022/356
2630 (2022)	12 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2022/387
2631 (2022)	26 May	The situation concerning Iraq	S/2022/426
2632 (2022)	26 May	The situation in Somalia	S/2022/412
2633 (2022)	26 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2022/417
2634 (2022)	31 May	Peace and security in Africa	S/2022/62
2635 (2022)	3 June	The situation in Libya	S/2022/450

2636 (2022)	3 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2022/443
2637 (2022)	22 June	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals	S/2022/501
2638 (2022)	22 June	Election of members of the International Court of Justice	S/2022/495
2639 (2022)	27 June	The situation in the Middle East	S/2022/512
2640 (2022)	29 June	The situation in Mali	S/2022/517
2641 (2022)	30 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	S/2022/523
2642 (2022)	12 July	The situation in the Middle East	S/2022/546
2643 (2022)	13 July	The situation in the Middle East	S/2022/549
2644 (2022)	13 July	The situation in Libya	S/2022/548
2645 (2022)	15 July	The question concerning Haiti	S/2022/560
2646 (2022)	28 July	The situation in Cyprus	S/2022/578
2647 (2022)	28 July	The situation in Libya	S/2022/580
2648 (2022)	29 July	The situation in the Central African Republic	S/2022/579
2649 (2022)	30 August	The situation in Mali	S/2022/650
2650 (2022)	31 August	The situation in the Middle East	S/2022/654
2651 (2022)	15 September	Threats to international peace and security	S/2022/693
2652 (2022)	29 September	The situation in Libya	S/2022/718
2653 (2022)	21 October	The question concerning Haiti	S/2022/765
2654 (2022)	27 October	The situation concerning Western Sahara	S/2022/801
2655 (2022)	27 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)	S/2022/804
2656 (2022)	28 October	The situation in Libya	S/2022/803
2657 (2022)	31 October	The situation in Somalia	S/2022/812
2658 (2022)	2 November	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina	S/2022/809
2659 (2022)	14 November	The situation in the Central African Republic	S/2022/845
2660 (2022)	14 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2022/839
2661 (2022)	15 November	The situation in Somalia	S/2022/855
2662 (2022)	17 November	The situation in Somalia	S/2022/865
2663 (2022)	30 November	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction	S/2022/881

2664 (2022)	9 December	General issues relating to sanctions	S/2022/925
2665 (2022)	16 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts	S/2022/955
2666 (2022)	20 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	S/2022/960
2667 (2022)	20 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	S/2022/964
2668 (2022)	21 December	United Nations peacekeeping operations	S/2022/977
2669 (2022)	21 December	The situation in Myanmar	S/2022/980
2670 (2022)	21 December	The situation in Somalia	S/2022/983
2671 (2022)	22 December	The situation in the Middle East	S/2022/986

Chapter 2

Statements by the President of the Security Council

Statement by the President	Date	Subject
S/PRST/2022/1	23 March	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
S/PRST/2022/2	31 March	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PRST/2022/3	6 May	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PRST/2022/4	3 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PRST/2022/5	12 July	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PRST/2022/6	31 August	Peace and security in Africa
S/PRST/2022/7	15 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

Chapter 3

Communications between the President of the Security Council and the Secretary-General

Items relating to the situation in the Middle East

The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

S/2022/39	26 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the
		Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of
		the Security Council

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

S/2022/558	7 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/559	12 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

S/2022/94	2 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/95	4 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/607	9 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Security Council resolution 1595 (2005)

S/2022/660	16 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/661	31 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/972	13 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/973	16 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East

Syrian Arab Republic

S/2022/51	25 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

S/2022/76	31 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/85	1 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/116	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/181	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/281	30 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/365	28 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/441	27 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/530	30 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/585	28 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/658	30 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/727	30 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/828	2 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/897	30 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1016	29 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
Yemen		
S/2022/300	7 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/343	21 April	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/411	17 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/484	13 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/773	5 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

The situation in Somalia

S/2022/698	15 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/716	26 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/981	16 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia

The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina

S/2022/374	3 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/591	26 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/806	25 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)

S/2022/208	10 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

The question concerning Haiti

S/2022/334	11 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/335	19 April	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/369	29 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/747	8 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1033	30 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

The situation in Afghanistan

S/2022/671	31 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/672	2 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

S/2022/486	10 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/487	15 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/511	22 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

S/2022/641	24 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

The situation in the Central African Republic

S/2022/99	7 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/149	17 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/150	22 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/329	18 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/449	1 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/451	1 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/489	14 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/659	31 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/817	31 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1008	28 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Children and armed conflict

S/2022/769	12 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the
		Secretary-General

Protection of civilians in armed conflict

S/2022/5427 JanuaryLetter from the President of the Security Council to the
Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the
Security Council

Women and peace and security

S/2022/38	20 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/207	14 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the Security Council

Central African region

S/2022/582	28 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

S/2022/42	20 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/78	26 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/79	31 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/239	13 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/508	22 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/536	29 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/537	5 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

S/2022/29	14 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the
		Secretary-General

Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

S/2022/68	28 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

S/2022/900	10 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2022/901	30 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
Maintenance of international peace and security			
S/2022/125	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2022/126	16 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
Peace and security in Africa			
S/2022/141	16 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2022/142	21 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2022/577	25 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

S/2022/139	16 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/140	21 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation in Libya

S/2022/618	12 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/669	31 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/670	2 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation in Mali

S/2022/8	4 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/14	6 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/43	20 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/341	20 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/448	1 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/741	3 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Items relating to Ukraine

S/2022/246	17 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)

S/2022/940 9 Dec	9 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question

S/2022/612	8 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/613	10 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Relations between Cameroon and Nigeria

S/2022/832	1 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/833	4 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation in Sierra Leone

S/2022/623	10 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/624	15 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Chapter 4 Meetings of the Security Council

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8943	5 January	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 28 December 2021 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2021/1103)
S/PV.8944	10 January	Peace consolidation in West Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (S/2021/1091)
S/PV.8945	11 January	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2021/1117)
		Letter dated 4 January 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/8)
S/PV.8946	12 January	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8947 (closed)	12 January	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2021/1110)
		Report of the Secretary-General on his mission of good offices in Cyprus (S/2021/1109)
S/PV.8948	17 January	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8949	18 January	Women and peace and security
		Protecting participation: addressing violence targeting women in peace and security processes
		Letter dated 10 January 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Norway to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (\$/2022/22)
S/PV.8950 and S/PV.8950 (Resumption 1)	19 January	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

Note: For closed meetings, a communiqué is issued in place of a verbatim record.

S/PV.8951	20 January	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (\$/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2021/1090)
S/PV.8952	24 January	The situation in Libya
		Letter dated 15 December 2021 from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2021/1058)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2022/31)
S/PV.8953 and	25 January	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.8953 (Resumption 1)		War in cities: protection of civilians in urban settings
		Letter dated 10 January 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Norway to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/23)
S/PV.8954	26 January	The situation in Afghanistan
S/PV.8955	26 January	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8956	27 January	The situation in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on his mission of good offices in Cyprus (S/2021/1109)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2021/1110)
S/PV.8957	27 January	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8958	27 January	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8959 (closed)	28 January	The situation in Myanmar
S/PV.8960	31 January	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.8961	31 January	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2022/31)
S/PV.8962	7 February	General issues relating to sanctions
		Preventing their humanitarian and unintended consequences
		Letter dated 2 February 2022 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/86)

S/PV.8963	9 February	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Fourteenth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat (S/2022/63)
S/PV.8964	15 February	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Letter dated 24 January 2022 from the Panel of Experts on the Sudan addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/48)
S/PV.8965	15 February	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Somalia (S/2022/101)
S/PV.8966	15 February	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 25 January 2022 from the Panel of Experts on Yemen addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/50)
S/PV.8967	16 February	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		Cooperation between the United Nations and the Collective Security Treaty Organization
S/PV.8968	17 February	Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)
S/PV.8969	18 February	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2022/117)
S/PV.8970	21 February	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8971	22 February	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2022/119)
S/PV.8972	22 February	The situation between Iraq and Kuwait
		Letter dated 10 February 2022 from the President of the Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/104)
S/PV.8973	23 February	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

S/PV.8974	23 February	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8975	24 February	The situation concerning Iraq
		Thirty-third report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (\$/2022/100)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2576 (2021) (\$/2022/103)
S/PV.8976	24 February	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.8977	25 February	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction
S/PV.8978	25 February	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021) (S/2022/135)
S/PV.8979	25 February	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8980	27 February	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8981	28 February	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 25 January 2022 from the Panel of Experts on Yemen addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/50)
S/PV.8982	28 February	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 31 January 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/76)
S/PV.8983	28 February	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8984	2 March	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security $(S/2022/64)$
S/PV.8985 (closed)	3 March	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Mission in South Sudan

		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2022/156)
S/PV.8986	4 March	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8987	7 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2022/156)
S/PV.8988	7 March	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.8989 and	8 March	Women and peace and security
S/PV.8989 (Resumption 1)		Women's economic inclusion and participation as a key to building peace
		Letter dated 1 March 2022 from the Permanent Representative of the United Arab Emirates to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/175)
S/PV.8990	10 March	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 4 March 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/181)
S/PV.8991	11 March	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.8992	14 March	Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe
S/PV.8993	14 March	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction
S/PV.8994	15 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan $(S/2022/156)$
S/PV.8995	15 March	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8996	16 March	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8997	17 March	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2022/64)
S/PV.8998	17 March	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.8999	18 March	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9000	22 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9001	23 March	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		Laggue of Arch States

League of Arab States

		Letter dated 17 March 2022 from the Permanent Representative of the United Arab Emirates to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/240)
S/PV.9002	23 March	Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)
S/PV.9003	24 March	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9004	25 March	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.9005	28 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9006	28 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in the Sudan and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan ($S/2022/172$)
S/PV.9007	29 March	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2022/252)
S/PV.9008	29 March	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.9009	31 March	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9010	31 March	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PV.9011	5 April	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.9012	7 April	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2022/278)
S/PV.9013	11 April	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9014	11 April	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Implementation of resolutions 2532 (2020) and 2565 (2021)
S/PV.9015	12 April	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (\$/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2022/267)
S/PV.9016 and	13 April	Women and peace and security
S/PV.9016 (Resumption 1)		Accountability as prevention – ending cycles of sexual violence in conflict

		Letter dated 5 April 2022 from the Permanent Representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/293)
S/PV.9017	14 April	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9018	19 April	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9019	20 April	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (S/2022/313)
S/PV.9020	21 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei $(S/2022/316)$
S/PV.9021 and S/PV.9021 (Resumption 1)	25 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9022	26 April	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021) (\$/2022/330)
S/PV.9023	27 April	The situation in the Great Lakes region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region (S/2022/276)
S/PV.9024	28 April	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9025	29 April	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9026	29 April	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 30 March 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/281)
S/PV.9027	5 May	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9028	6 May	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9029	11 May	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
		Letter dated 3 May 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/374)
S/PV.9030	11 May	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

S/PV.9031	12 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9032	12 May	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9033	13 May	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9034	17 May	The situation concerning Iraq
		Thirty-fourth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (\$/2022/366)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2576 (2021) (S/2022/368)
S/PV.9035	18 May	Peace and security in Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel (S/2022/382)
S/PV.9036	19 May	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Conflict and food security
		Letter dated 12 May 2022 from the Permanent Representative of the United States of America to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/391)
S/PV.9037	20 May	Consideration of the draft report of the Security Council to the General Assembly
S/PV.9038	20 May	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9039	23 May	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Technology and security
S/PV.9040	23 May	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Somalia (S/2022/392)
S/PV.9041	24 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in the Sudan and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan (S/2022/400)
S/PV.9042 and	25 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9042 (Resumption 1)		Report of the Secretary-General on the protection of civilians in armed conflict (S/2022/381)
S/PV.9043	26 May	The situation concerning Iraq
		Thirty-fourth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2022/366)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2576 (2021) (S/2022/368)

S/PV.9044	26 May	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Somalia (\$/2022/392)
S/PV.9045	26 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9046	26 May	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9047	26 May	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2022/409)
S/PV.9048	26 May	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.9049 (closed)	27 May	The situation in Myanmar
S/PV.9050	31 May	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.9051	31 May	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PV.9052	2 June	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Strengthening accountability and justice for serious violations of international law
		Letter dated 24 May 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Albania to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary- General (S/2022/418/Rev.1)
S/PV.9053	3 June	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9054	3 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9055	3 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PV.9056	6 June	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9057 (closed)	7 June	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (\$/2022/446)
S/PV.9058	8 June	Central African region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (S/2022/436)
S/PV.9059	8 June	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9060 (closed)	9 June	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

S/PV.9061	13 June	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2022/446)
		Letter dated 1 June 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/448)
S/PV.9062	14 June	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PV.9063	14 June	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9064	15 June	Women and peace and security
		Keeping the promises: the role of regional organizations in implementing the women and peace and security agenda in the face of political turmoil and seizures of power by force
		Letter dated 4 June 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Albania to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (\$/2022/457)
S/PV.9065	16 June	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		European Union
S/PV.9066	16 June	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2022/481)
S/PV.9067	20 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Reports of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2022/468)
S/PV.9068	20 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021) (S/2022/492)
S/PV.9069	21 June	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9070	21 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9071	21 June	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9072	22 June	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PV.9073	22 June	Date of election to fill a vacancy in the International Court of Justice
		Note by the Secretary-General concerning the date of an election to fill a vacancy in the International Court of Justice (S/2022/453)

S/PV.9074	22 June	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Letter dated 1 June 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/449)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2022/491)
S/PV.9075	23 June	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2022/485)
S/PV.9076	27 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2022/447)
S/PV.9077	27 June	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9078	27 June	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9079 and S/PV.9079	28 June	Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council ($\frac{S}{2017}$)
(Resumption 1)		Working methods of the Security Council
		Letter dated 21 June 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Albania to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (\$/2022/499)
S/PV.9080	28 June	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9081	29 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2022/503)
S/PV.9082	29 June	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2022/446)
		Letter dated 1 June 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/448)
S/PV.9083	29 June	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9084	30 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Letter dated 10 June 2022 from the Group of Experts extended pursuant to Security Council resolution 2582 (2021) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/479)

S/PV.9085	30 June	Non-proliferation
		Letter dated 10 June 2022 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/482)
		Thirteenth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015) (S/2022/490)
		Letter dated 23 June 2022 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/510)
S/PV.9086	7 July	Peace consolidation in West Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (S/2022/521)
S/PV.9087	8 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9088	11 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9089	12 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9090 and	12 July	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PV.9090 (Resumption 1)		The key role of strategic communications for efficient peacekeeping
		Letter dated 5 July 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Brazil to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary- General (S/2022/539)
S/PV.9091	13 July	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 13 June 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/484)
S/PV.9092	13 July	The situation in Libya
		Letter dated 24 May 2022 from the Panel of Experts on Libya established pursuant to resolution 1973 (2011) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/427)
S/PV.9093 (closed)	13 July	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2022/533)
		Report of the Secretary-General on his mission of good offices in Cyprus (8/2022/534)

S/PV.9094	14 July	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (\$/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2022/513)
S/PV.9095	15 July	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.9096 and	19 July	Children and armed conflict
S/PV.9096 (Resumption 1)		Report of the Secretary-General on Children and armed conflict (S/2022/493)
		Letter dated 5 July 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Brazil to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary- General (\$/2022/540)
S/PV.9097	20 July	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 30 June 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/530)
S/PV.9098	25 July	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9099	26 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9100	26 July	The situation concerning Iraq
S/PV.9101	27 July	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
S/PV.9102	28 July	The situation in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (\$/2022/533)
		Report of the Secretary-General on his mission of good offices in Cyprus (S/2022/534)
S/PV.9103	28 July	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9104	29 July	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9105	29 July	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Letter dated 14 June 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/489)
		Letter dated 29 June 2022 from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic extended pursuant to resolution 2588 (2021) addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/527)
S/PV.9106	8 August	Peace and security in Africa
		Capacity-building for sustaining peace

		Letter dated 1 August 2022 from the Permanent Representative of China to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/592)
S/PV.9107	8 August	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9106	9 August	Peace and security in Africa
(Resumption 1)		Capacity-building for sustaining peace
		Letter dated 1 August 2022 from the Permanent Representative of China to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/592)
S/PV.9108	9 August	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Fifteenth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat (S/2022/576)
S/PV.9109	11 August	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9110	15 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9111 (closed)	16 August	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, Sections A and B
		United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon
		Letter dated 9 August 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/607)
S/PV.9112	22 August	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Promote common security through dialogue and cooperation
		Letter dated 12 August 2022 from the Permanent Representative of China to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/617)
S/PV.9113	23 August	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9114	23 August	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9115	24 August	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9116	25 August	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9117	29 August	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022) (S/2022/635)

S/PV.9118	29 August	The situation in Afghanistan
S/PV.9119	30 August	The situation in Mali
	-	Letter dated 3 August 2022 from the Panel of Experts on Mali established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/595)
S/PV.9120	30 August	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2022/632)
S/PV.9121	31 August	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 9 August 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/607)
S/PV.9122	31 August	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.9123	6 September	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PV.9124	6 September	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9125	7 September	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on Somalia (S/2022/665)
S/PV.9126	7 September	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9127	8 September	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9128	13 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9129	13 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in the Sudan and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan (S/2022/667)
S/PV.9130	14 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9131	15 September	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9132	15 September	Letter dated 13 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Armenia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/688)
S/PV.9133	15 September	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9134	16 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2022/689)
S/PV.9135	22 September	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9136	26 September	The question concerning Haiti

S/PV.9137	27 September	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2022/692)
S/PV.9138	27 September	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9139	28 September	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9140	29 September	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2598 (2021) (S/2022/655)
S/PV.9141	29 September	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 30 August 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/658)
S/PV.9142	30 September	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2022/709)
S/PV.9143	30 September	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9144	30 September	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9145	4 October	The situation concerning Iraq
		Thirty-fifth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (\$/2022/696))
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2631 (2022) (\$/2022/714)
S/PV.9146	5 October	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.9147	6 October	Peace and security in Africa
		Strengthening the fight against the financing of armed groups and terrorists through the illicit trafficking of natural resources
		Letter dated 30 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Gabon to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (\$/2022/728)
S/PV.9148 (closed)	10 October	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara
S/PV.9149	11 October	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		African Union

		Report of the Secretary-General on strengthening the
		partnership between the United Nations and the African Union on issues of peace and security in Africa, including the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union (S/2022/643)
		Letter dated 3 October 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Gabon to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/736)
S/PV.9150	12 October	Threats to international peace and security
		Climate and security in Africa
		Letter dated 3 October 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Gabon to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (\$/2022/737)
S/PV.9151	12 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2022/715)
S/PV.9152	13 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9153	17 October	The question concerning Haiti
		Letter dated 8 October 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/747)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2022/761)
S/PV.9154	18 October	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (\$/2022/731)
S/PV.9155	18 October	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (S/2022/739)
S/PV.9156	19 October	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2022/762)
S/PV.9157	19 October	The situation in Somalia
		Letter dated 10 October 2022 from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/754)

		Letter dated 15 October 2022 from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/766)
S/PV.9158	20 October	Women and peace and security
		Strengthening women's resilience and leadership as a pathway to peace in regions plagued by armed groups
		Report of the Secretary-General on women and peace and security $(\frac{8}{2022})$
		Letter dated 4 October 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Gabon to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/743)
S/PV.9159	21 October	The question concerning Haiti
		Letter dated 8 October 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/747)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2022/761)
S/PV.9160 (closed)	21 October	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.9161	21 October	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9162	24 October	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9163	25 October	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022) (S/2022/775)
S/PV.9164	25 October	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 30 September 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/727)
S/PV.9165	26 October	The situation in the Great Lakes region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region (\$/2022/735)
S/PV.9166	26 October	Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice
S/PV.9167	26 October	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9168	27 October	The situation concerning Western Sahara
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation concerning Western Sahara (S/2022/733)

S/PV.9169	27 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (\$/2016/53)	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (8/2022/715)	
S/PV.9170	27 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (\$/2022/760)	
S/PV.9171	27 October	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9172 (closed)	27 October	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9173	28 October	The situation in Libya	
S/PV.9174 and S/PV.9174 (Resumption 1)	28 October	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	
S/PV.9175	31 October	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9176	31 October	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9177	31 October	The situation in Somalia	
		Letter dated 26 September 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/716)	
		Letter dated 15 October 2022 from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/766)	
S/PV.9178	2 November	Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees	
S/PV.9179	2 November	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina	
		Letter dated 25 October 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/806)	
S/PV.9180	2 November	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9181 and	3 November	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace	
S/PV.9181 (Resumption 1)		Integrating effective resilience-building in peace operations for sustainable peace	
		Letter dated 24 October 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Ghana to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/799)	

S/PV.9182	4 November	Election of a member of the International Court of Justice	
		Memorandum by the Secretary-General on the Election of a member of the International Court of Justice (\$/2022/722)	
		Note by the Secretary-General on the Election of a member of the International Court of Justice: list of candidates nominated by national groups (S/2022/723)	
		Note by the Secretary-General on the Election of a member of the International Court of Justice: curriculum vitae of the candidates $(S/2022/724)$	
S/PV.9183	4 November	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea	
S/PV.9184	7 November	The situation in the Middle East	
		Letter dated 2 November 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/828)	
S/PV.9185 (closed)	7 November	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, Sections A and B	
		United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2022/762)	
S/PV.9186 (closed)	7 November	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B	
		United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (\$/2022/760)	
S/PV.9187	9 November	The situation in Libya	
S/PV.9188	10 November	Threats to international peace and security	
		Counter-terrorism in Africa: an imperative for peace, security and development	
		Letter dated 1 November 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Ghana to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/822)	
S/PV.9189	14 November	United Nations peacekeeping operations	
S/PV.9190	14 November	The situation in the Central African Republic	
S/PV.9191	14 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
S/PV.9192	15 November	The situation in Libya	

S/PV.9193	15 November	The situation in Somalia	
		Letter dated 15 September 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/698)	
S/PV.9194	16 November	Peace and security in Africa	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel (S/2022/838)	
S/PV.9195	16 November	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9196	17 November	The situation in Somalia	
		Letter dated 15 September 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/698)	
S/PV.9197	21 November	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea	
S/PV.9198	22 November	Peace and security in Africa	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation of piracy and armed robbery at sea in the Gulf of Guinea and its underlying causes (\$/2022/818)	
S/PV.9199	22 November	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9200	23 November	The situation in Mali	
S/PV.9201	23 November	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	
S/PV.9202	23 November	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9203	28 November	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	
S/PV.9204	29 November	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9205	30 November	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction	
S/PV.9206	5 December	Threats to international peace and security	
		Letter dated 7 November 2022 from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/836)	
S/PV.9207	5 December	The situation in the Middle East	
		Letter dated 30 November 2022 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/897)	
S/PV.9208	6 December	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9209 (closed)	6 December	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B	
		United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo	

S/PV.9210	7 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
S/PV.9211	7 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in the Sudan and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan ($S/2022/898$)	
S/PV.9212 (closed)	7 December	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police- contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B	
		United Nations Disengagement Observer Force	
S/PV.9213	8 December	Central African region	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (S/2022/896)	
S/PV.9214	9 December	General issues relating to sanctions	
S/PV.9215	9 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2022/892)	
S/PV.9216	9 December	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9217	12 December	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals	
		Note by the Secretary-General on the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals (S/2022/583)	
S/PV.9218	12 December	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	
S/PV.9219	13 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2022/918)	
S/PV.9220 and	14 December	Maintenance of international peace and security	
S/PV.9220 (Resumption 1)		New orientation for reformed multilateralism	
		Letter dated 25 November 2022 from the Permanent Representative of India to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/880)	
S/PV.9221	15 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts	
		Global counter-terrorism approach – principles and the way forward	
		Letter dated 5 December 2022 from the Permanent Representative of India to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2022/906)	

S/PV.9222	16 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
S/PV.9223	16 December	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2022/932)
S/PV.9224	19 December	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9225	19 December	Non-proliferation
		Fourteenth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015) (S/2022/912)
		Letter dated 6 December 2022 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/919)
		Letter dated 12 December 2022 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2022/937)
S/PV.9226	20 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2022/892)
S/PV.9227	20 December	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security $(S/2022/916)$
S/PV.9228	20 December	Letter dated 13 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Armenia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/688)
S/PV.9229	21 December	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PV.9230	21 December	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the humanitarian needs in the Syrian Arab Republic (\$/2022/933)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022) (\$/2022/956)
S/PV.9231	21 December	The situation in Myanmar
S/PV.9232	21 December	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9233	21 December	The question concerning Haiti

 S/PV.9234
 22 December
 The situation in the Middle East

 Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2022/887)

Chapter 5 Meetings of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

Military Staff Committee

8 and 21 January; 4 and 18 February; 4 and 18 March; 1, 14 and 29 April; 13 and 27 May; 10 and 24 June; 7 and 22 July; 5 and 19 August; 2, 16 and 29 September; 14, 20 and 28 October; 3, 10 and 23 November; 9 and 16 December

Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission

9 February; 9 December

Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab

Informal consultations/meetings

11 February; 3 June; 7 and 14 October

Joint informal consultations/meetings

29 November (held with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014))

Videoconference meetings

27 May

Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities

Informal consultations/meetings

2 and 16 February; 15 March; 1 April; 6 July; 3 and 24 October; 2 December

Joint informal consultations/meetings

1 April (held with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011))

Joint briefings to Member States

7 April (held with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism); 28 November (held with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011))

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism

Formal/plenary meetings

24 January; 17 February; 24 March; 18 May; 10 June; 20 July; 26 August; 7 October; 23 November; 23 December

Informal consultations/meetings

28 and 29 October (one meeting)

Briefings to Member States

14 February; 2 and 20 December

Joint briefings to Member States

7 April (held with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities)

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Informal consultations/meetings

15 March; 13 May; 1 July; 15 September; 9 and 22 December

Briefings to Member States

15 July

Videoconference meetings

14 January

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004)

Formal/plenary meetings

3 February; 31 May; 1 and 2 June

Informal consultations/meetings

5 April; 10 and 12 May; 5 and 14 July

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan

Informal consultations/meetings

8 April; 19 August

Videoconference meetings

21 January

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006)

Informal consultations/meetings

23 February; 17 June; 26 August; 15 December

Briefings to Member States

12 April; 28 October

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya

Informal consultations/meetings

20 May; 4 November

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011)

Informal consultations/meetings

4 April; 24 May

Joint informal consultations/meetings

1 April (held with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities)

Joint briefings to Member States

28 November (held with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities)

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea-Bissau

No meetings were held.

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic

Informal consultations/meetings

6 May; 24 June; 31 August; 30 September; 16 November

Briefings to Member States

31 August

Videoconference meetings

12 May

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014)

Informal consultations/meetings

10 June; 9 September

Joint informal consultations/meetings

29 November (held with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab)

Videoconference meetings

21 January

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan

Informal consultations/meetings

14 February; 22 April; 1 July; 17 August; 18 November

Briefings to Member States

22 June

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) concerning Mali

Informal consultations/meetings

8 February; 16 March; 28 July; 14 December

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022) concerning Haiti

No meetings were held.

Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations

No meetings were held.

Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa

Informal consultations/meetings

9 February; 6 April; 29 August; 11 October; 30 November

Joint consultative videoconference meetings between members of the Security Council and the Peace and Security Council of the African Union

14 October

Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict

Formal/plenary meetings

1 and 10 February; 1 March; 14 April; 5 May; 18 July; 2 September; 4 and 28 October; 8 November; 19 December

Informal consultations/meetings

30 March; 14 April; 20 May; 1 and 27 June; 5 and 28 July; 14 September; 13, 19 and 26 October; 2, 10, 16 and 30 November

Informal Working Group on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions

Formal/plenary meetings

8 March; 6 May; 22 July; 11 November; 22 December

Informal Working Group on International Tribunals

Formal/plenary meetings

13 June; 9 December

Reports of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

A. Military Staff Committee

Symbol	Date submitted
S/2022/1036	16 December

B. Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission

Symbol	Date submitted
8/2022/104	10 February
8/2022/941	12 December

C. Annual reports of committees

S/2022/995	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab
8/2022/963	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities
S/2022/968	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003)
S/2022/971	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2022/1034	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004)
S/2022/961	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan
S/2022/1001	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006)
S/2022/970	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya
S/2022/969	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011)
S/2022/996	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea-Bissau
S/2022/987	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic
S/2022/1006	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014)
S/2022/965	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan

S/2022/978	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) concerning Mali
S/2022/1000	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022) concerning Haiti

D. Annual reports of working groups

S/2022/1032	Informal Working Group on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions
S/2022/1003	Informal Working Group on International Tribunals
S/2022/60	Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa
S/2022/1010	
S/2022/1018	Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict

Reports of panels and monitoring mechanisms

Sumbal	Date submitted	Duran and to	
Symbol		Pursuant to	
Analytical Support and Sanctions N	Ionitoring Team		
S/2022/83	3 February	Resolution 2368 (2017)	
S/2022/419	25 May	Resolution 2611 (2021)	
S/2022/547	11 July	Resolution 2610 (2021)	
Central African Republic: Panel of	Experts		
S/2022/527	29 June	Resolution 2588 (2021)	
Democratic Republic of the Congo:	Group of Experts		
S/2022/479	10 June	Resolution 2582 (2021)	
S/2022/967	16 December	Resolution 2641 (2022)	
Democratic People's Republic of Ko	orea: Panel of Experts		
S/2022/132	1 March	Resolution 2569 (2021)	
Libya: Panel of Experts			
S/2022/427 and S/2022/427/Corr.1	24 May	Resolution 2571 (2021)	
Mali: Panel of Experts			
S/2022/232	28 February	Resolution 2590 (2021)	
S/2022/595	3 August	Resolution 2590 (2021)	
Somalia: Panel of Experts			
S/2022/754	10 October	Resolution 2607 (2021)	
South Sudan: Panel of Experts			
S/2022/359	28 April	Resolution 2206 (2015)	
S/2022/884	28 November	Resolution 2206 (2015)	
Sudan: Panel of Experts			
S/2022/48	24 January	Resolution 2562 (2021)	
Yemen: Panel of Experts			
S/2022/50	25 January	Resolution 2564 (2021)	

Security Council missions

The Security Council conducted no mission in 2022.

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

Peacekeeping operation	Established by resolution	Decisions adopted during the reporting period relating to the mandate of the operation
United Nations Military Observer Group in India and Pakistan (UNMOGIP)	47 (1948)	None
United Nations Truce Supervision Organization (UNTSO)	50 (1948)	None
United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP)	186 (1964)	2618 (2022); 2646 (2022)
United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF)	350 (1974)	2639 (2022); 2671 (2022)
United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL)	425 (1978) 426 (1978)	2650 (2022)
United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO)	690 (1991)	2654 (2022)
United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (UNMIK)	1244 (1999)	None
United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO)	1925 (2010)	2666 (2022)
United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA)	1990 (2011)	2630 (2022); 2660 (2022)
United Nations Mission in South Sudan (UNMISS)	1996 (2011)	2625 (2022)
United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali (MINUSMA)	2100 (2013)	2640 (2022)
United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA)	2149 (2014)	2659 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

		Decisions adopted during
Mission or office	Established by	the reporting period relating to the mandate of the mission or office
United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA)	1401 (2002)	2626 (2022)
United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI)	1500 (2003)	2631 (2022)
United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia	S/2007/280	None
United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA)	2452 (2019)	2643 (2022)
United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (UNOCA)	S/2010/457	None
United Nations Office to the African Union (UNOAU)	General Assembly resolution 64/288	None
United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL)	2009 (2011)	2619 (2022); 2629 (2022); 2647 (2022); 2656 (2022)
United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNSOM)	2102 (2013)	2632 (2022); 2657 (2022)
United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (UNOWAS)	S/2016/89	None
United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia	2366 (2017)	2655 (2022)
United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (BINUH)	2476 (2019)	2645 (2022)
United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan (UNITAMS)	2524 (2020)	2636 (2022)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2022/31	17 January	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2022/46	26 January	Children and armed conflict in Iraq
S/2022/63	28 January	Fourteenth report on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat
S/2022/64	28 January	Situation in Afghanistan and implications for international peace and security
S/2022/66 and S/2022/66/Corr.1	28 January	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
S/2022/77	31 January	Women and girls who become pregnant as a result of sexual violence in conflict and children born of sexual violence in conflict
S/2022/100	8 February	Thirty-third report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/101	8 February	Situation in Somalia
S/2022/103	10 February	Implementation of resolution 2576 (2021)
S/2022/117	15 February	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2022/119	16 February	Central African Republic
S/2022/135	21 February	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021)
S/2022/156	25 February	Situation in South Sudan
S/2022/172	2 March	Situation in the Sudan and activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan
S/2022/214	11 March	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) during the period from 26 October 2021 to 18 February 2022
S/2022/280	15 March	Strengthening security sector reform
S/2022/220	16 March	Youth and peace and security
S/2022/247	18 March	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2022/252	21 March	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2022/267	28 March	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia

S/2022/272	29 March	Conflict-related sexual violence
S/2022/276	30 March	Implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region
S/2022/313	12 April	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2022/278/Rev.1	13 April	Situation in Mali
S/2022/316	14 April	Situation in Abyei
S/2022/330	19 April	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021)
S/2022/345	22 April	Thirty-fifth semi-annual report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2022/360	28 April	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2578 (2021)
S/2022/366	29 April	Thirty-fourth report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/368	29 April	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2576 (2021)
S/2022/370	3 May	Assessment of progress achieved on the key benchmarks established in paragraph 2 of resolution 2577 (2021)
S/2022/381	10 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/2022/382	11 May	Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel
S/2022/392	13 May	Situation in Somalia
S/2022/397	16 May	Children and armed conflict in Somalia
S/2022/400	17 May	Situation in the Sudan and activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan
S/2022/409	20 May	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2022/428	26 May	Responsibility to protect: prioritizing children and young people
S/2022/436	26 May	Situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa
S/2022/447	1 June	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2022/446	2 June	Situation in Mali
S/2022/468	9 June	Situation in South Sudan
S/2022/481	13 June	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2022/485	15 June	Situation in Afghanistan and implications for international peace and security
S/2022/490	23 June	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)

S/2022/491	16 June	Central African Republic
S/2022/492	16 June	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021)
S/2022/493	23 June	Children and armed conflict
S/2022/503	22 June	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2022/504	22 June	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2022/513	27 June	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2022/521	29 June	Activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel
S/2022/522	29 June	Transitions in United Nations peace operations
S/2022/533	5 July	United Nations operation in Cyprus
S/2022/534	5 July	Mission of good offices of the Secretary-General in Cyprus
S/2022/556	14 July	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) during the period from 19 February to 20 June 2022
S/2022/569	21 July	Children and armed conflict in the Philippines
S/2022/576	26 July	Fifteenth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat
S/2022/596	4 August	Children and armed conflict in Nigeria
S/2022/606	8 August	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and other organizations
S/2022/627	17 August	Children and armed conflict in the Sudan
S/2022/632	19 August	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2022/635	22 August	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022)
S/2022/643	25 August	Strengthening the partnership between the United Nations and the African Union on issues of peace and security in Africa, including the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union
S/2022/655	30 August	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2598 (2021)
S/2022/665	1 September	Situation in Somalia
S/2022/667	2 September	Situation in the Sudan and activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan

S/2022/689	13 September	Situation in South Sudan
S/2022/692	14 September	Situation in Afghanistan and implications for international peace and security
S/2022/696	16 September	Thirty-fifth report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/709	22 September	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2022/711	22 September	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2022/714	26 September	Implementation of resolution 2631 (2022)
S/2022/715	27 September	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2022/731	3 October	Situation in Mali
S/2022/733	3 October	Situation concerning Western Sahara
8/2022/735	4 October	Implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region
S/2022/739	4 October	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2022/740	5 October	Women and peace and security
S/2022/745	10 October	Children and armed conflict in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2022/749	11 October	Thirty-sixth semi-annual report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2022/760	13 October	Situation in Abyei
S/2022/761	13 October	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2022/762	13 October	Central African Republic
S/2022/775	19 October	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022)
S/2022/818	1 November	Situation of piracy and armed robbery at sea in the Gulf of Guinea and its underlying causes
S/2022/819	1 November	Situation with respect to piracy and armed robbery at sea off the coast of Somalia
S/2022/838	9 November	Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel
S/2022/856	15 November	Children and armed conflict in Mali
S/2022/858	15 November	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) during the period from 21 June to 2 November 2022
S/2022/887	29 November	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

S/2022/892	30 November	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2022/896	1 December	Situation in Central Africa and activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa
S/2022/898	1 December	Situation in the Sudan and activities of the United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan
S/2022/910	6 December	Implementation of resolution 2635 (2022)
S/2022/916	7 December	Situation in Afghanistan and implications for international peace and security
S/2022/918	7 December	Situation in South Sudan
S/2022/932	9 December	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2022/912	12 December	Fourteenth report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/933	12 December	Humanitarian needs in the Syrian Arab Republic
S/2022/945	14 December	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2022/956	15 December	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022)
S/2022/959	15 December	Promotion of durable peace and sustainable development in Africa
S/2022/1004	28 December	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2022/1019	3 January 2023	Activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel

Summary statements by the Secretary-General of matters of which the Security Council was seized

S/2022/10 and S/2022/10/Add.1-Add.53.

Notes by the President of the Security Council

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2022/2, S/2022/2/Rev.1, S/2022/2/Rev.2 and S/2022/2/Rev.3	13 January, 1 July and 4 and 24 August	Bureaux of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council
S/2022/2	13 January	Bureaux of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council
S/2022/132	1 March	Report of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 1874 (2009)
S/2022/210	10 March	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/211	10 March	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/403	20 May	Adoption of the annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly
S/2022/469	9 June	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/470	9 June	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/471	9 June	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/472	10 June	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/668	7 September	Report of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 1874 (2009)

S/2022/844	11 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/847	14 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/848	14 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/849	14 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/850	14 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/851	14 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/852	15 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/853	15 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/854	15 November	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)

Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council*

January	Norway	S/2022/924
February	Russian Federation	_
March	United Arab Emirates	S/2022/917
April	United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	S/2022/868
May	United States of America	_
June	Albania	S/2022/1017
July	Brazil	S/2023/40
August	China	S/2022/989
September	France	S/2023/82
October	Gabon	
November	Ghana	_
December	India	S/2023/107

^{*} Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council are intended to have an informative purpose and should not necessarily be considered as representing the views of the Council. Assessments not available at the time of issuance of the present report will be posted on the Council website as they become available.

Part II Questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security

Chapter 1

The situation in Cyprus

Meetings of the Council

8956 (27 January); 9102 (28 July)

(See also part II, chap. 21.A)

Consultations of the whole

17 January; 18 July

Resolutions adopted

2618 (2022); 2646 (2022)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus

Resolution 186 (1964)	Established
Resolution 2618 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 July 2022
Resolution 2646 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 January 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/533	5 July	Resolution 186 (1964) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2618 (2022)
S/2022/534	5 July	Resolution 2618 (2022)
Communications		
S/2022/107	10 February	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General

S/2022/215	10 March	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the
		Secretary-General

S/2022/317	13 April	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the
		Secretary-General

S/2022/386

S/2022/390	10 May	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2022/405	19 May	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2022/507	22 June	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/599	3 August	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2022/684	9 September	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/702	16 September	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/798	24 October	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/805	25 October	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/834	4 November	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/944	13 December	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General

Chapter 2 Items relating to the situation in the Middle East

A. The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

Meetings of the Council

8950 (19 January); 8973 (23 February); 9000 (22 March); 9021 (25 April); 9046 (26 May); 9077 (27 June); 9099 (26 July); 9107 (8 August); 9116 (25 August); 9139 (28 September); 9174 (28 October); 9203 (28 November); 9224 (19 December)

Consultations of the whole

22 March; 19 April; 26 May; 8 August; 28 November; 19 December

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/504	22 June	Resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2022/945	14 December	Resolution 2334 (2016)

S/2022/25	11 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/30	14 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/45	21 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/39	26 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/114	14 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

8/2022/146	22 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of
5/2022/140	22 i coruary	Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/199	8 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/236	16 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/283	1 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/312	12 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/315	12 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/318	14 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/321	15 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/326	18 April	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the Secretary-General
S/2022/328	19 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/342	21 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/349	21 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/364	27 April	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/361	28 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/377	9 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/388	11 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/394	12 May	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the General Assembly
S/2022/442	31 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/452	6 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/466	9 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/496	20 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/531	l July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/561	15 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/589	29 July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/602	5 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/603	8 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/628	17 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/631	18 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/662	31 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/719	28 September	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/734	3 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/758	13 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/763	14 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/800	25 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/879	28 November	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/905	2 December	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/1035	13 December	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/985	20 December	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

(See also chap. 17)

B. The situation in the Middle East

1. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Meetings of the Council

9076 (27 June); 9234 (22 December)

(See also part II, chap. 21.B)

Consultations of the whole

30 March; 21 June; 17 October; 8 December

Resolutions adopted

2639 (2022); 2671 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Truce Supervision Organization

Resolution 50 (1948) Established

(A number of military observers are assigned to the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force)

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Resolution 350 (1974)	Established
Resolution 2639 (2022)	Mandate renewed until 31 December 2022
Resolution 2671 (2022)	Mandate renewed until 30 June 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/247	18 March	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2613 (2021)
S/2022/447	1 June	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2613 (2021)
S/2022/711	22 September	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2639 (2022)

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/887	29 November	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2639 (2022)
Communicat	tions	
S/2022/9	4 January	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/102	9 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/123	16 February	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/213	10 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/304	11 April	Letter from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General
8/2022/396	16 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/413	23 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/444	31 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/463	7 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/465	8 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/474	10 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/483	13 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/558	7 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/559	12 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
8/2022/563	15 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/572	22 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/588	28 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/621	15 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/793	22 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/982	19 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

2. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

Meetings of the Council

9121 (31 August)

(See also part II, chap. 21.C)

Consultations of the whole

17 March; 28 November

Resolutions adopted

2650 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Truce Supervision Organization

Resolution 50 (1948) Established

(A number of military observers are assigned to the United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon)

United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon

Resolutions 425 (1978) and Established 426 (1978)

Resolution 2650 (2022) Mandate extended until 31 August 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/214	11 March	Resolution 1701 (2006)
S/2022/556	14 July	Resolution 1701 (2006)
S/2022/858	15 November	Resolution 1701 (2006)

S/2022/6	4 January	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/58	18 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/84 and S/2022/84/Corr.1	28 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/94	2 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/95	4 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/129	9 February	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/124	16 February	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/229	15 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/235	15 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/285	4 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/327	7 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/323	8 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/348	20 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/373	3 May	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/395	12 May	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/422	18 May	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/420	23 May	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/467	2 June	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/462	7 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/535	5 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/550	11 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/562	15 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/607	9 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/619	11 August	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/674	6 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/772	6 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/774	17 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/85715 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/85915 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/92115 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/88817 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/89417 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/89429 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/98429 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council			
to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/92115 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/88817 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/89417 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/89417 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/98429 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council	8/2022/857	15 November	to the Secretary-General and the President of the
Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council\$/2022/88817 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council\$/2022/89417 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council\$/2022/89417 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council\$/2022/98429 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the	S/2022/859	15 November	to the Secretary-General and the President of the
Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/89417 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security CouncilS/2022/98429 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the	8/2022/921	15 November	Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the
S/2022/98429 NovemberIdentical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the	S/2022/888	17 November	Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the
Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the	S/2022/894	17 November	Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the
	S/2022/984	29 November	Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the

(See also chap. 17)

3. Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East

(a) The situation in the Syrian Arab Republic

Meetings of the Council

8943 (5 January); 8955 (26 January); 8957 and 8958 (27 January); 8978 (25 February); 8982 (28 February); 8990 (10 March); 9003 (24 March); 9022 (26 April); 9026 (29 April); 9038 (20 May); 9068 (20 June); 9083 (29 June); 9087 (8 July); 9089 (12 July); 9097 (20 July); 9117 (29 August); 9130 (14 September); 9141 (29 September); 9163 (25 October); 9164 (25 October); 9184 (7 November); 9204 (29 November); 9207 (5 December); 9230 (21 December)

Consultations of the whole

26 and 27 January; 29 April; 27 and 31 May; 20 and 29 June; 7, 8 and 28 July; 30 August; 14 and 26 September; 25 October; 21 November; 5 and 21 December

Resolutions adopted

2642 (2022)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2022/538 (see special report of the Security Council contained in document A/76/905); S/2022/541

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/135	21 February	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021)
S/2022/330	19 April	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021)
S/2022/492	16 June	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020) and 2585 (2021)
S/2022/635	22 August	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022)
S/2022/775	19 October	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022)
S/2022/933	12 December	Resolution 2642 (2022)
S/2022/956	15 December	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018), 2449 (2018), 2504 (2020), 2533 (2020), 2585 (2021) and 2642 (2022)

S/2022/47	24 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/51	25 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/85	1 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/116	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/181	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/213	10 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/265	25 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/281	31 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/322	18 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/355	27 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/365	28 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	4 May	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/389	11 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/396	16 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/398	16 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/413	24 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/423	24 May	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/424	25 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/441	27 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/498	20 June	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/530	30 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/545	2 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/584	28 July	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Türkiye to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/585	28 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/611	9 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/646	26 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/647	26 August	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/651	29 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/658	30 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/666	1 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/675	6 September	Letter from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/678	7 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/680	7 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/699	17 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/727	30 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/828	2 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/893	29 November	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/897	30 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/954	14 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1016	29 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

(b) Yemen

Meetings of the Council

8946 (12 January); 8966 (15 February); 8981 (28 February); 8995 (15 March); 9017 (14 April); 9063 (14 June); 9088 (11 July); 9091 (13 July); 9110 (15 August); 9152 (13 October); 9199 (22 November)

Consultations of the whole

12 January; 15 and 24 February; 15 March; 14 April; 17 May; 14 June; 11 July; 15 August; 8 September; 13 October; 22 November; 13 December

Resolutions adopted

2624 (2022); 2643 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement

Resolution 2452 (2019)	Established
Resolution 2643 (2022)	Mandate extended until 14 July 2023

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Yemen

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/50	25 January	Resolution 2564 (2021)

S/2022/17	9 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/35	18 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/50	25 January	Letter from the Panel of Experts on Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/57	25 January	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/65	28 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/71	31 January	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/87	2 February	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/105	11 February	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/145	22 February	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/226	14 March	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/255	21 March	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/268	25 March	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/287	4 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/300	7 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/343	21 April	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
8/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/411	17 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/484	13 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/526	29 June	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/570	21 July	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/601	5 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/653	29 August	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/730	1 October	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/732	3 October	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/773	5 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/785	21 October	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/791	21 October	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/843	11 November	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/864	16 November	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1006	27 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014) addressed to the President of the Security Council

(See also part II, chap. 14)

The situation concerning Western Sahara

Meetings of the Council

9168 (27 October)

(See also part II, chap. 21.D)

Consultations of the whole

20 April; 17 October

Resolutions adopted

2654 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara

Resolution 690 (1991)	Established
Resolution 2654 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/733	3 October	Resolution 2602 (2021)

S/2022/115	14 February	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/339	20 April	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/414	18 May	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/455	6 June	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/473	9 June	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/509	23 June	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/555	13 July	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/797	17 October	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council

United Nations peacekeeping operations

Meetings of the Council

9090 (12 July); 9123 (6 September); 9189 (14 November); 9229 (21 December)

Resolutions adopted

2668 (2022)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/5

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
8/2022/522	29 June	Resolution 2594 (2021)

S/2022/539	5 July	Letter from the representative of Brazil to the
		Secretary-General

The situation between Iraq and Kuwait

Meetings of the Council

8972 (22 February)

Resolutions adopted

2621 (2022)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/100	8 February	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/366	29 April	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/696	16 September	Resolution 2107 (2013)

S/2022/104	10 February	Letter from the President of the Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/137	21 February	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/144	22 February	Letter from the representative of Peru to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/903	2 December	Note by the Secretary-General
S/2022/941	12 December	Letter from the President of the Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/968	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003) to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 6 The situation in Somalia

Meetings of the Council

8965 (15 February); 8976 (24 February); 9009 (31 March); 9040 (23 May); 9044 (26 May); 9071 (21 June); 9125 (7 September); 9157 (19 October); 9177 (31 October); 9193 (15 November); 9196 (17 November); 9232 (21 December)

Consultations of the whole

15 February; 24 March; 23 May; 7 September

Resolutions adopted

2628 (2022); 2632 (2022); 2657 (2022); 2661 (2022); 2662 (2022); 2670 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia

Resolution 2102 (2013)	Established for an initial period of 12 months
Resolution 2632 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2022
Resolution 2657 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2023

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Somalia

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/754	10 October	Resolutions 751 (1992) 2607 (2021)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/101	8 February	Resolutions 2592 (2021) and 2568 (2021)
S/2022/392	13 May	Resolutions 2592 (2021) and 2628 (2022)
S/2022/665	1 September	Resolutions 2592 (2021) and 2628 (2022)
S/2022/819	1 November	Resolution 2608 (2021)

(See also part II, chap. 14)

S/2022/162	26 February	Letter from the representative of Somalia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/698	15 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/716	26 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/754	10 October	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/766	15 October	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/939	9 December	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/981	16 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/995	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab to the President of the Security Council

Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia

A. The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina

Meetings of the Council

9029 (11 May); 9179 (2 November)

Resolutions adopted

2658 (2022)

Communications

8/2022/374	3 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/376	6 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/591	26 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/806	25 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/823	1 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council

B. Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)

Meetings of the Council

9019 (20 April); 9155 (18 October)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo

Resolution 1244 (1999) Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/313	12 April	Resolution 1244 (1999)
S/2022/739	4 October	Resolution 1244 (1999)
Communications		
S/2022/208	10 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the

President of the Security Council

The question concerning Haiti

Meetings of the Council

8969 (18 February); 9066 (16 June); 9095 (15 July); 9136 (26 September); 9153 (17 October); 9159 (21 October); 9233 (21 December)

Consultations of the whole

18 February; 16 June; 13 July; 26 September; 17 October

Resolutions adopted

2645 (2022); 2653 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti

Resolution 2476 (2019)	Established
Resolution 2645 (2022)	Mandate extended until 15 July 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/117	15 February	Resolution 2600 (2021)
S/2022/481	13 June	Resolution 2600 (2021)
S/2022/761	13 October	Resolution 2645 (2022)

S/2022/44	18 January	Letter from the representative of Saint Vincent and the Grenadines to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/334	11 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/335	19 April	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/369	29 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

8/2022/552	12 July	Letter from the representative of Canada to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/746	7 October	Letter from the representatives of Austria, Belgium, Chile, Costa Rica, Denmark, Finland, Germany, Ireland, Liechtenstein, the Netherlands, Norway, Sweden and Switzerland to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/747	8 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/764	14 October	Identical letters from the representative of Haiti to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1000	23 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022) concerning Haiti to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1033	30 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 9 The situation in Afghanistan

Meetings of the Council

8954 (26 January); 8984 (2 March); 8997 (17 March); 9075 (23 June); 9118 (29 August); 9137 (27 September); 9227 (20 December)

Consultations of the whole

26 January; 2 and 25 March; 12 May; 23 June; 27 September; 20 December

Resolutions adopted

2626 (2022);

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan

Resolution 1401 (2002)	Established
Resolution 2626 (2022)	Mandate extended until 17 March 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/64	28 January	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2596 (2021)
S/2022/485	15 June	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2626 (2022)
S/2022/692	14 September	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2626 (2022)
S/2022/916	7 December	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2626 (2022)

S/2022/152	23 February	Letter from the representatives of Australia, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Kazakhstan, the Netherlands, Norway, Qatar, the Republic of Korea, Slovakia, Sweden, Turkey, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and the
		United States of America to the President
		of the Security Council

8/2022/336	18 April	Letter from the representative of Afghanistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/362	28 April	Identical letters from the representatives of Qatar and Turkey to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/671	31 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/672	2 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

(See also part II, chap. 17)

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

Meetings of the Council

9010 (31 March); 9062 (14 June); 9072 (22 June); 9217 (12 December)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/2

Resolutions adopted

2637 (2022)

S/2022/36	19 January	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/148	23 February	Report of the Office of Internal Oversight Services on the evaluation of the methods and work of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/2022/319	14 April	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/404	19 May	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/486	10 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/487	15 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/511	22 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/583	28 July	Note by the Secretary-General
S/2022/866	16 November	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1003	27 December	Letter from the Chair of the Informal Working Group on International Tribunals to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 11 The situation in the Great Lakes region

Meetings of the Council

9023 (27 April); 9165 (26 October)

Consultations of the whole

27 April

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/276	30 March	Resolution 2621 (2021)
S/2022/735	4 October	Resolution 2612 (2021)

S/2022/353	25 April	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/789	21 October	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council

The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meetings of the Council

9007 (29 March); 9051 (31 May); 9055 (3 June); 9081 (29 June); 9084 (30 June); 9142 (30 September); 9215 (9 December); 9226 (20 December)

(See also part II, chap. 21.E)

Consultations of the whole

29 March; 29 June; 26 July; 4 August; 30 September; 21 November; 9 December

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/4

Resolutions adopted

2641 (2022); 2666 (2022); 2667 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Resolution 1925 (2010)	Established
Resolution 2666 (2022)	Mandate extended until 20 December 2023

Reports of the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/479	10 June	Resolution 2582 (2021)
S/2022/967	16 December	Resolution 2641 (2022)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/252	21 March	Resolution 2612 (2021)
S/2022/503	22 June	Resolution 2612 (2021)
S/2022/709	22 September	Resolution 2612 (2021)
S/2022/892	30 November	Resolution 2612 (2021)

S/2022/479	10 June	Letter from the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo extended pursuant to Security Council resolution 2582 (2021) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/488	14 June	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/610	10 August	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/641	24 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/664	1 September	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/967	16 December	Letter from the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/971	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1007	23 December	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
(See also part II, chap. 17)		

Chapter 13 The situation in the Central African Republic

Meetings of the Council

8971 (22 February); 9074 (22 June); 9105 (29 July); 9156 (19 October); 9190 (14 November)

(See also part II, chaps. 21.F and 24)

Consultations of the whole

22 February; 22 June; 19 October

Resolutions adopted

2648 (2022); 2659 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic

Resolution 2149 (2014)	Established
Resolution 2659 (2022)	Mandate extended until 15 November 2023

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/527	29 June	Resolution 2588 (2021)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/119	16 February	Resolution 2605 (2021)
S/2022/491	16 June	Resolution 2605 (2021)
S/2022/762	13 October	Resolution 2605 (2021)

S/2022/99	7 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/149	17 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/150	22 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

S/2022/329	18 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/449	1 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/451	1 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/489	14 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/527	29 June	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic extended pursuant to resolution 2588 (2021) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/659	31 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/817	31 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/840	9 November	Letter from the Chair of the Central African Republic configuration of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/987	15 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1008	28 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
(Caralas and Haran 17)		

(See also part II, chap. 17)

Chapter 14 Children and armed conflict

Meetings of the Council

9096 (19 July)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/46	26 January	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2022/397	16 May	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2022/428	26 May	General Assembly resolution 75/277
S/2022/493	23 June	Resolution 2427 (2018)
S/2022/569	21 July	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2022/596	4 August	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2022/627	17 August	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2022/745	10 October	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2022/856	15 November	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions

S/2022/476	10 June	Letter from the representatives of Canada and Germany to the Secretary-General
S/2022/540	5 July	Letter from the representative of Brazil to the Secretary-General
S/2022/571	20 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/769	12 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/1018	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 15 Protection of civilians in armed conflict

Meetings of the Council

8953 (25 January); 9042 (25 May); 9133 (15 September)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/381	10 May	S/PRST/2018/18 and resolutions 2286 (2016), 2417 (2018), 2474 (2019), 2475 (2019) and 2573 (2021)

S/2022/23	10 January	Letter from the representative of Norway to the Secretary-General
S/2022/54	27 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/406	19 May	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/416	24 May	Letter from the representative of France to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/456	1 June	Identical letters from the representative of Mexico to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/524	27 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/564	15 July	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/566	15 July	Letter from the representative of Belarus to the Secretary-General

General issues relating to sanctions

Meetings of the Council

8962 (7 February); 9214 (9 December)

Resolutions adopted

2664 (2022)

S/2022/86	2 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/96	7 February	Letter from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/98	7 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 17 Women and peace and security

Meetings of the Council

8949 (18 January); 8989 (8 March); 9016 (13 April); 9064 (15 June); 9158 (20 October)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/77	31 January	Resolution 2467 (2019)
S/2022/272	29 March	Resolution 2467 (2019)
S/2022/740	5 October	S/PRST/2010/22

S/2022/22	10 January	Letter from the representative of Norway to the Secretary-General
S/2022/38	20 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/91	3 February	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Kenya and Mexico to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/171	1 March	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/175	1 March	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the Secretary-General
S/2022/207	14 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General and the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/258	22 March	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
8/2022/293	5 April	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/340	13 April	Letter from the representatives of Germany and South Africa to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/385	5 May	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/383	10 May	Letter from the representatives of Ireland and Mexico to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/460	3 June	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/457	4 June	Letter from the representative of Albania to the Secretary-General
S/2022/557	6 July	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/593	l August	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/743	4 October	Letter from the representative of Gabon to the Secretary-General
S/2022/756	12 October	Letter from the representative of Norway to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/815	26 October	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/816	26 October	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/991	20 December	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/1005	22 December	Letter from the representatives of Ireland, Mexico and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/1009	27 December	Letter from the representative of Norway to the President of the Security Council

Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice

Meetings of the Council

9166 (26 October)

Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees

Meetings of the Council

9178 (2 November)

Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe

Meetings of the Council

8992 (14 March)

S/2022/221	14 March	Letter from the representative of Romania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/224	14 March	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/228	14 March	Letter from the representative of Slovakia to the President of the Security Council

Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B

A. United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus

Meetings of the Council

8947 (12 January); 9093 (13 July)

Official communiqués

S/PV.8947; S/PV.9093

(See also part II, chap. 1)

B. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Meetings of the Council

9060 (9 June); 9212 (7 December)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9060; S/PV.9212

(See also part II, chap. 2.B.1)

C. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon

Meetings of the Council

9111 (16 August)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9111

(See also part II, chap. 2.B.2)

D. United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara

Meetings of the Council

9148 (10 October)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9148

(See also part II, chap. 3)

E. United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meetings of the Council 9209 (6 December)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9209

(See also part II, chap. 12)

F. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic

Meetings of the Council

9185 (7 November)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9185

(See also part II, chap. 13)

G. United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei

Meetings of the Council 9186 (7 November)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9186

(See also part II, chap. 26)

H. United Nations Mission in South Sudan

Meetings of the Council

8985 (3 March)

Official communiqués

S/PV.8985

(See also part II, chap. 26)

I. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali

Meetings of the Council 9057 (7 June)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9057

(See also part II, chap. 38)

Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

Meetings of the Council

8963 (9 February); 9108 (9 August); 9221 (15 December); 9222 (16 December)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/7

Resolutions adopted

2665 (2022)

Reports of the Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/83	3 February	Resolution 2610 (2021)
S/2022/419	25 May	Resolution 2611 (2021)
S/2022/547	11 July	Resolution 2610 (2021)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/63	28 January	Resolutions 2253 (2015) and 2610 (2021)
S/2022/576	26 July	Resolutions 2253 (2015) and 2610 (2021)

S/2022/68	28 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/83	3 February	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/203	9 March	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/419	25 May	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/433	25 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2022/505	22 June	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/529	30 June	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/547	11 July	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/608	9 August	Letter from the Ombudsperson to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/900	10 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/620	15 August	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/634	22 August	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/687	12 September	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General
S/2022/831	4 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2022/846	9 November	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/901	30 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/906	5 December	Letter from the representative of India to the Secretary-General

S/2022/963	15 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/969	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/998	22 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1002	23 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism to the President of the Security Council

Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

Meetings of the Council

9201 (23 November); 9218 (12 December)

Central African region

Meetings of the Council

9058 (8 June); 9213 (8 December)

(See also part II, chap. 13)

Consultations of the whole

8 December

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa

S/2010/457 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/436	26 May	Presidential statement S/PRST/2018/17 and resolution 2349 (2017)
S/2022/896	1 December	Presidential statement S/PRST/2018/17 and resolution 2349 (2017)

S/2022/461	8 June	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/582	28 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction

Meetings of the Council

8977 (25 February); 8993 (14 March); 9205 (30 November)

Resolutions adopted

2622 (2022); 2663 (2022)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2022/821

S/2022/825	2 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/863	15 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/899	29 November	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1034	31 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) to the President of the Security Council

Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

Meetings of the Council

8948 (17 January); 8964 (15 February); 8987 (7 March); 8994 (15 March); 9005 and 9006 (28 March); 9020 (21 April); 9031 (12 May); 9041 (24 May); 9045 (26 May); 9054 (3 June); 9067 (20 June); 9070 (21 June); 9113 (23 August); 9128 (13 September); 9129 (13 September); 9134 (16 September); 9170 (27 October); 9191 (14 November); 9210 (7 December); 9211 (7 December); 9219 (13 December)

Consultations of the whole

12 January; 7 and 28 March; 21 and 27 April; 24 May; 20 June; 13 and 16 September; 27 October; 7 and 13 December

Resolutions adopted

2620 (2022); 2625 (2022); 2630 (2022); 2633 (2022); 2636 (2022); 2660 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei

Resolution 1990 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2630 (2022)	Mandate extended until 15 November 2022
Resolution 2660 (2022)	Mandate extended until 15 November 2023

United Nations Mission in South Sudan

Resolution 1996 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2625 (2022)	Mandate extended until 15 March 2023

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Integrated Transition Assistance Mission in the Sudan

Resolution 2524 (2020)			Established
Resolution	2636	(2022)	Mandate extended until 3 June 2023

Reports of the Panel of Experts on South Sudan

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/359	28 April	Resolution 2206 (2015)
S/2022/884	28 November	Resolution 2206 (2015)

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Sudan

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/48	24 January	Resolution 2562 (2021)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/156	25 February	Resolution 2567 (2021)
S/2022/172	2 March	Resolution 2579 (2021)
S/2022/316	14 April	Resolution 2609 (2021)
S/2022/370	3 May	Resolution 2577 (2021)
S/2022/400	17 May	Resolution 2579 (2021)
S/2022/468	9 June	Resolution 2625 (2022)
S/2022/667	2 September	Resolution 2636 (2022)
S/2022/689	13 September	Resolution 2625 (2022)
S/2022/760	13 October	Resolution 2630 (2022)
S/2022/898	1 December	Resolution 2636 (2022)
S/2022/918	7 December	Resolution 2625 (2022)

(See also part II, chap. 14)

S/2022/42	20 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/48	24 January	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/53	25 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/78	26 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/79	31 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/239	13 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/256	22 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/325	18 April	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/359	28 April	Letter from the Panel of Experts on South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/401	16 May	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/508	22 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/536	29 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/537	5 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/682	8 September	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/884	28 November	Letter from the Panel of Experts on South Sudan established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2206 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/961	15 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/965	15 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan to the President of the Security Council

(See also part II, chap. 17)

Chapter 27 Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

Meetings of the Council

9101 (27 July); 9181 (3 November)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/66 and S/2022/66/Corr.1	28 January	General Assembly resolution 75/201 and Security Council resolution 2558 (2020)

S/2022/29	14 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/89	3 February	Report of the Peacebuilding Commission on its fifteenth session
S/2022/202	8 March	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/250	18 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission
S/2022/799	24 October	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the Secretary-General
S/2022/827	3 November	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/949	14 December	Letter from the representative of Kenya to the Secretary-General

Chapter 28 The situation concerning Iraq

Meetings of the Council

8975 (24 February); 9034 (17 May); 9043 (26 May); 9100 (26 July); 9145 (4 October)

Consultations of the whole

24 February; 16 March; 26 July; 4 October; 22 November

Resolutions adopted

2631 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq

Resolution 1500 (2003)	Established
Resolution 2631 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 May 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/100	8 February	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/103	10 February	Resolution 2576 (2021)
S/2022/366	29 April	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/368	29 April	Resolution 2576 (2021)
S/2022/696	16 September	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2022/714	26 September	Resolution 2631 (2022)

(See also part II, chap. 14)

S/2022/40	19 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/112	11 February	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/410	19 May	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General
S/2022/497	17 June	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/515	16 June	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/500	21 June	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/574	22 July	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/748	10 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/826	2 November	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/837	8 November	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council

(See also part II, chaps. 5 and 17)

Chapter 29 Threats to international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

8960 (31 January); 8988 (7 March); 8991 (11 March); 8998 (17 March); 8999 (18 March); 9033 (13 May); 9059 (8 June); 9109 (11 August); 9114 (23 August); 9124 (6 September); 9127 (8 September); 9131 (15 September); 9144 (30 September); 9150 (12 October); 9171 and 9172 (27 October); 9175 and 9176 (31 October); 9180 (2 November); 9206 (5 December); 9216 (9 December)

Consultations of the whole

21 January; 7 March

Resolutions adopted

2651 (2022)

S/2022/185	7 March	Letter from the representative of Romania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/187	7 March	Letter from the representative of Poland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/188	7 March	Letter from the representative of Hungary to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/189	7 March	Letter from the representative of Germany to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/190	7 March	Letter from the representative of Slovakia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/195	7 March	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/198	7 March	Letter from the representative of France to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/218	11 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/241	17 March	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/245	17 March	Letter from the representative of Sweden to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/242	18 March	Letter from the representative of Georgia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/244	18 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/434	26 May	Letter from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/615	11 August	Letter from the representative of Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/683	9 September	Letter from the representative of Czechia to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/725	29 September	Letter from the representatives of Denmark and Sweden to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/737	3 October	Letter from the representative of Gabon to the Secretary-General
S/2022/822	1 November	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the Secretary-General
S/2022/836	7 November	Letter from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant to the President of the Security Council

Non-proliferation

Meetings of the Council

9085 (30 June); 9225 (19 December)

Reports of the Security Council Facilitator

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/482	10 June	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/510	23 June	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/919	6 December	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/937	12 December	Resolution 2231 (2015)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/490	23 June	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/912	12 December	Resolution 2231 (2015)

S/2022/3	3 January	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/15	7 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/34	17 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/73	31 January	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/97	7 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/122	16 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

S/2022/177	2 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/210	10 March	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/211	10 March	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/225	14 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/415	24 May	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/421	25 May	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/438	26 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/445	31 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/464	8 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/469	9 June	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/470	9 June	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/471	9 June	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/472	10 June	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/482	10 June	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/502	21 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/510	23 June	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/514	24 June	Identical letters from the representative of the United States of America to the Secretary-General, the President of the Security Council and the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2022/518	27 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/544	5 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/554	13 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/771	17 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/776	19 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2022/781	21 October	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/782	21 October	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/783	21 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/794	24 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/844	11 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/847	14 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/848	14 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/849	14 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/850	14 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/851	14 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/852	15 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/853	15 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/854	15 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/878	22 November	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/861	23 November	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to
		the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/882	28 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/889	29 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/890	29 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/908	5 December	Letter from the representative the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/911	6 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/913	6 December	Letter from the representative of Germany to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/914	6 December	Letter from the representative of France to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/915	6 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/919	6 December	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/922	7 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/923	7 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/937	12 December	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/962	15 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Peace consolidation in West Africa

Meetings of the Council

8944 (10 January); 9086 (7 July)

Consultations of the whole

8 February; 7 July

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel

S/2016/89 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/521	29 June	Resolution 2349 (2017)
S/2022/1019	3 January 2023	Resolution 2349 (2017)

S/2022/108	7 February	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/109	7 February	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/130	17 February	Letter from the representatives of France, Ghana and Norway to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/271	28 March	Identical letters from the representative of Ghana to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/454	6 June	Identical letters from the representative of Ghana to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Chapter 32 The situation in Myanmar

Meetings of the Council

8959 (28 January); 9049 (27 May); 9231 (21 December)

Consultations of the whole

16 September

Resolutions adopted

2669 (2022)

Communications

See part II, chapter 17.

Chapter 33 Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Meetings of the Council

9004 (25 March); 9030 (11 May); 9048 (26 May); 9146 (5 October); 9183 (4 November); 9197 (21 November)

Consultations of the whole

10 and 20 January; 4, 24 and 28 February; 7 and 25 March; 27 May; 30 August; 5 October; 28 November

Resolutions adopted

2627 (2022)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2022/431 (see special report of the Security Council contained in document A/76/853)

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/132	1 March	Resolution 2569 (2021)

S/2022/132	1 March	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/261	24 March	Letter from the representative of Japan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/379	9 May	Letter from the representative of Japan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/425	25 May	Letter from the representative of the Republic of Korea to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/429	25 May	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/430	25 May	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/668	7 September	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/742	4 October	Letter from the representative of Japan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/829	3 November	Letter from the representative of Japan to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/870	18 November	Letter from the representative of Japan to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/871	18 November	Letter from the representative of the Republic of Korea to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1001	27 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006) to the President of the Security Council

Maintenance of international peace and security

A. General issues

Meetings of the Council

9167 (26 October)

Consultations of the whole

25 October

Resolutions adopted

2652 (2022)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/280	15 March	Resolutions 2151 (2014) and 2553 (2020)
S/2022/220	16 March	Resolution 2535 (2020)
S/2022/655	30 August	Resolution 2598 (2021)

S/2022/21	10 January	Letter from the representative of Norway to the Secretary-General
S/2022/113	11 February	Letter from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General
S/2022/125	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/126	16 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/212	10 March	Letter from the representatives of China and the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/432	25 May	Letter from the representative of Greece to the Secretary-General
S/2022/573	21 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/629	15 August	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/673	6 September	Letter from the representative of Greece to the Secretary-General
S/2022/703	17 September	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2022/802	25 October	Letter from the representative of Belarus to the Secretary-General
S/2022/813	1 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/999	26 December	Letter from the representatives of Kenya and Norway to the President of the Security Council

B. Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)

Meetings of the Council

9014 (11 April)

Communications

S/2022/307	11 April	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding
		Commission to the President of the
		Security Council

C. Conflict and food security

Meetings of the Council

9036 (19 May)

S/2022/338	20 April	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/378	9 May	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/391	12 May	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the Secretary-General
S/2022/407	19 May	Letter from the representative of Slovakia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/408	20 May	Letter from the representative of Georgia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/875	21 November	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council

D. Cybersecurity

Meetings of the Council

9039 (23 May)

Communications

S/2022/677	7 September	Letter from the representative of Albania to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/685	10 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/734	3 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

E. Strengthening accountability and justice for serious violations of international law

Meetings of the Council

9052 (2 June)

Communications

S/2022/418/Rev.1 24 May

Letter from the representative of Albania to the Secretary-General

F. Promoting common security through dialogue and cooperation

	Meetings of the Council		
	9112 (22 August)		
	Communications		
	S/2022/617	12 August	Letter from the representative of China to the Secretary-General
G.	Maritime secu	rity	
	Meetings of the Council		
	9140 (29 September)		

Communications

S/2022/80	31 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/81	31 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/82	31 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/477	10 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/478	10 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

H. New orientation for reformed multilateralism

Meetings of the Council

9220 (14 December)

S/2022/880	25 November	Letter from the representative of India to the
		President of the Security Council

Chapter 35 Peace and security in Africa

A. General issues

Meetings of the Council

9035 (18 May); 9050 (31 May); 9122 (31 August); 9160 (21 October); 9194 (16 November); 9198 (22 November)

Consultations of the whole

27 January; 22 February; 14 April; 29 June; 28 September; 21 October

Resolutions adopted

2634 (2022)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/6

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Office to the African Union

General Assembly resolution 64/288 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/382	11 May	Resolution 2391 (2017)
S/2022/818	1 November	Resolution 2634 (2022)
S/2022/838	9 November	Resolution 2391 (2017)
S/2022/959	15 December	General Assembly resolution 75/327

S/2022/60	26 January	Letter from the Chair of the Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/141	16 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/134	21 February	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/142	21 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/151	23 February	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/516	27 June	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/520	28 June	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/577	25 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/586	29 July	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/587	29 July	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/597	2 August	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/598	2 August	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/860	15 November	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/872	18 November	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1010	28 December	Letter from the Chair of the Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa to the President of the Security Council

B. Capacity-building for sustaining peace

Meetings of the Council

9106 (8 and 9 August)

Communications

S/2022/592	1 August	Letter from the representative of China to the
		Secretary-General

C. Strengthening the fight against the financing of armed groups and terrorists through the illicit trafficking of natural resources

Meetings of the Council

9147 (6 October)

Communications

S/2022/72830 SeptemberLetter from the representative of Gabon to the
Secretary-General

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

8967 (16 February); 9001 (23 March); 9065 (16 June); 9149 (11 October)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/1

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/606	8 August	General Assembly resolution 58/316, Security Council resolution 1809 (2008) and S/PRST/2013/12
S/2022/643	25 August	S/PRST/2014/27
Communicatio	ons	
S/2022/139	16 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/140	21 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/240	17 March	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the Secretary-General
S/2022/270	28 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/736	3 October	Letter from the representative of Gabon to the Secretary-General
S/2022/750	10 October	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/768	15 October	Letter from the Chair of the Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 37 The situation in Libya

Meetings of the Council

8952 (24 January); 8961 (31 January); 8996 (16 March); 9024 (28 April); 9025 (29 April); 9047 (26 May); 9053 (3 June); 9078 (27 June); 9092 (13 July); 9098 (25 July); 9103 (28 July); 9120 (30 August); 9162 (24 October); 9173 (28 October); 9187 (9 November); 9192 (15 November); 9223 (16 December)

Consultations of the whole

24 January; 16 March, 24 May; 20 June; 25 July; 29 September; 24 October; 15 November; 16 December

Resolutions adopted

2619 (2022); 2629 (2022); 2635 (2022); 2644 (2022); 2647 (2022); 2656 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Support Mission in Libya

Resolution 2009 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2619 (2022)	Mandate extended until 30 April 2022
Resolution 2629 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 July 2022
Resolution 2647 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2022
Resolution 2656 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2023

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Libya

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/427 and S/2022/427/Corr.1	24 May	Resolution 2571 (2021)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/31	17 January	Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021) and 2599 (2021)
S/2022/360	28 April	Resolution 2578 (2021)
S/2022/409	20 May	Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021), 2599 (2021) and 2619 (2022)
S/2022/632	19 August	Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021) and 2647 (2022)

S/2022/910 S/2022/932	6 December 9 December	Resolution 2635 (2022) Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021), 2647 (2022) and 2656 (2022)
Communications		
S/2022/427 and S/2022/427/Corr.1	24 May	Letter from the Panel of Experts on Libya established pursuant to resolution 1973 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/618	12 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/669	31 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/670	2 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/936	9 December	Letter from the representatives of Libya and Türkiye to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/970	13 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 38 The situation in Mali

Meetings of the Council

8945 (11 January); 9012 (7 April); 9061 (13 June); 9082 (29 June); 9119 (30 August); 9154 (18 October); 9200 (23 November)

(See also part II, chap. 21.I)

Consultations of the whole

11 January; 7 April; 3 May; 13 June; 18 October

Resolutions adopted

2640 (2022); 2649 (2022)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali

Resolution 2100 (2013)	Established
Resolution 2640 (2022)	Mandate extended until 30 June 2023

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Mali

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/232	28 February	Resolution 2590 (2021)
S/2022/595	3 August	Resolution 2590 (2021)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/278/Rev.1	13 April	Resolution 2584 (2021)
S/2022/446	2 June	Resolution 2584 (2021)
S/2022/731	3 October	Resolution 2640 (2022)

(See also part II, chap. 14)

S/2022/8	4 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/14	6 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/43	20 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/109	7 February	Letter from the representative of Ghana to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/232	28 February	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/341	20 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/371	2 May	Letter from the representative of Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/399	16 May	Letter from the representative of Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/448	1 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/542	6 July	Letter from the representative of Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/595	3 August	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/622	15 August	Letter from the representative of Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/625	16 August	Letter from the representative of France to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/704	19 September	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/741	3 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/767	17 October	Letter from the representative of Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/978	19 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) concerning Mali to the President of the Security Council

Items relating to Ukraine

A. Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine

Meetings of the Council

9013 (11 April); 9018 (19 April); 9027 (5 May); 9028 (6 May); 9032 (12 May); 9056 (6 June); 9069 (21 June); 9080 (28 June); 9104 (29 July); 9115 (24 August); 9126 (7 September); 9135 (22 September); 9138 (27 September); 9143 (30 September); 9161 (21 October); 9195 (16 November); 9202 (23 November); 9208 (6 December)

Consultations of the whole

19 October

Resolutions adopted

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2022/720 (see special report of the Security Council contained in document A/77/551)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2022/3

S/2022/305	11 April	Letter from the representative of Latvia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/306	11 April	Letter from the representative of Sweden to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/311	11 April	Letter from the representative of Slovakia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/324	18 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/331	19 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/332	19 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/337	20 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/344	21 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/346	23 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/352	26 April	Letter from the representative of Albania to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/363	28 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/367	29 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
8/2022/375	6 May	Letter from the representative of Albania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/393	13 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/439	26 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/440	27 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/458	7 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/459	8 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/480	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/506	22 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
8/2022/543	29 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/551	11 July	Letter from the representative of Albania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/568	19 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
8/2022/573	21 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/575	25 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/590	29 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/594	l August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/604	8 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/605	8 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/616	12 August	Letter from the representatives of Latvia, Liechtenstein and Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/626	16 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/630	17 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/633	18 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/636	23 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/637	23 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/639	23 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/640	24 August	Letter from the representative of Estonia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/644	25 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/645	25 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/648	26 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/649	27 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/652	29 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/656	30 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/657	30 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/663	31 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/676	6 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/697	16 September	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/700	17 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/706	19 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/710	22 September	Note verbale from the Permanent Mission of Romania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/712	21 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/713	22 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/717	27 September	Letter from the representative of Estonia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/738	3 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/753	4 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/744	5 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/757	12 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/771	17 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/776	19 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2022/780	20 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/781	21 October	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/782	21 October	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/783	21 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/786	21 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/790	21 October	Letter from the representative of Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/792	21 October	Letter from the representative of Romania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/794	24 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/795	24 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/796	24 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/810	28 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/811	28 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2002/814	29 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

S/2022/824	1 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/825	2 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/841	10 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/862	15 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/873	19 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/877	22 November	Note verbale from the Permanent Mission of Eritrea to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/883	28 November	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/886	29 November	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/904	2 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/908	5 December	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/911	6 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/913	6 December	Letter from the representative of Germany to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/914	6 December	Letter from the representative of France to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/915	6 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/922	7 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2022/923	7 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/927	8 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/930	9 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/943	13 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/966	16 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/990	16 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/993	22 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

(See also part II, chap. 14)

B. Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)

Meetings of the Council

8970 (21 February); 8974 (23 February); 8979 (25 February); 8980 (27 February); 8983 (28 February); 8986 (4 March); 9008 (29 March); 9011 (5 April)

Consultations of the whole

22 March

Resolutions adopted

2623 (2022)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2022/155

S/2022/11	6 January	Identical letters from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/67	28 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

S/2022/120	15 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
8/2022/131	18 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
8/2022/133	19 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/138	21 February	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/143	22 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/153	23 February	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/159	26 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/161	26 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/165	28 February	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/166	28 February	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/167	28 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/169	1 March	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/180	4 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/186	4 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/183	5 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/192	5 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/182	6 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/184	7 March	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/191	7 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/193	7 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/197	8 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
8/2022/222	14 March	Letter from the representatives of Australia and the Netherlands to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/230	14 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/234	14 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/246	17 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/251	21 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/254	21 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/257	22 March	Letter from 2022 the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/264	24 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/273	29 March	Letter from the representative of Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/282	31 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/288	4 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2022/289	5 April	Letter from the representative of Estonia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/290	5 April	Letter from the representative of Poland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/301	8 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

C. Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)

Meetings of the Council

8968 (17 February); 9002 (23 March)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2022/231

S/2022/121	16 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/127	17 February	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/154	24 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/179	3 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/194	7 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/201	8 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/204	9 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/205	9 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/209	10 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/216	11 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/217	11 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/218	11 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/233	15 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/248	18 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/249	19 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/253	21 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

S/2022/259	23 March	Letter from the representatives of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/275	29 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/279	30 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/284	1 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/297	6 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/298	6 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/299	6 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2022/303	8 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

(See also part II, chap. 22)

Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (\$/2016/53)

Meetings of the Council

8951 (20 January); 9015 (12 April); 9094 (14 July); 9151 (12 October); 9169 (27 October)

Consultations of the whole

20 January; 12 April; 12 October

Resolutions adopted

2655 (2022)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia

Resolution 2366 (2017)	Established
Resolution 2655 (2022)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2023

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2022/267	28 March	Resolution 2603 (2021)
S/2022/513	27 June	Resolution 2603 (2021)
S/2022/715	27 September	Resolution 2603 (2021)
S/2022/1004	28 December	Resolution 2655 (2022)

Communications

8/2022/553	13 July	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/787	17 October	Identical letters from the representative of Colombia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/940	9 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

(See also part II, chap. 17)

Letter dated 13 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Armenia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (8/2022/688)

Meetings of the Council

9132 (15 September); 9228 (20 December)

Consultations of the whole

14 September; 16 December

S/2022/26	11 January	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/28	12 January	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/37	18 January	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/41	19 January	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/61	27 January	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/70	28 January	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/92	3 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/93	3 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/106	10 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/110	11 February	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/168	28 February	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/176	2 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/243	17 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/269	25 March	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General

S/2022/291	5 April	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/302	8 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/310	11 April	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/314	12 April	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/333	19 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/347	22 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/354	25 April	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/357	27 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/358	27 April	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/437	26 May	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/609	4 August	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/638	23 August	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2002/642	24 August	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/681	7 September	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/688	13 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/690	13 September	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/691	13 September	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/694	13 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/721	28 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General

S/2022/726	29 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/729	30 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/751	10 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/755	12 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/808	27 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/835	4 November	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/885	28 November	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/979	19 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/988	20 December	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/992	21 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General

Part III Other matters considered by the Security Council

Chapter 1

Annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly

Meetings of the Council		
9037 (20 May)		
Communications		
S/2022/403	20 May	Note by the President of the Security Council

Chapter 2

Election of members of the International Court of Justice

Meetings of the Council

9073 (22 June); 9182 (4 November)

Resolutions adopted

2638 (2022)

Communications

S/2022/453	6 June	Note by the Secretary-General
S/2022/724	30 September	Note by the Secretary-General
S/2022/722	6 October	Memorandum by the Secretary-General
S/2022/723	6 October	Note by the Secretary-General

Chapter 3

Items relating to Security Council documentation and working methods and procedure

A. Implementation of note by the President of the Security Council (\$/2017/507)

Meetings of the Council 9079 (28 June)

Consultations of the whole

29 June; 13 and 25 July

S/2022/32	17 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/196	7 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the representatives of the members of the Security Council
S/2022/286	4 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/292	5 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/309	11 April	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2022/320	14 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/499	21 June	Letter from the representative of Albania to the Secretary-General
S/2022/519	28 June	Letter from the representative of Saint Vincent and the Grenadines to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/528	29 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/565	18 July	Letter from the representative of Albania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/567	19 July	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/842	10 November	Letter from the representative of Albania to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1011	29 December	Letter from the representatives of India, Ireland, Kenya, Mexico and Norway to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/1032	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Informal Working Group on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions to the President of the Security Council

B. General matters

S/2022/1	1 January	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/2, S/2022/2/Rev.1, S/2022/2/Rev.2 and S/2022/2/Rev.3	13 January, 1 July and 4 and 24 August	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2022/4	1 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/7	4 January	Letter from the representative of Georgia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/12	6 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/13	6 January	Letter from the representative of Cuba to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/16	7 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/20	10 January	Letter from the representative of Tunisia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/24	11 January	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/88	25 January	Letter from the representative of Saint Vincent and the Grenadines to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/72	28 January	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/128	16 February	Letter from the representative of Finland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/157	24 February	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/686	12 September	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/695	8 September	Letter from the representative of Costa Rica to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/752	10 October	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/830	3 November	Note verbale from the Permanent Mission of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela addressed to the President of the Security Council

Part IV Report of the Military Staff Committee

The report of the Military Staff Committee for 2022 has been issued as document S/2022/1036, as agreed by the Committee.

Part V Matters brought to the attention of the Security Council but not discussed at meetings of the Council during the period covered

Chapter 1

Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question

S/2022/90	3 February	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/223	14 March	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/294	6 April	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/295	6 April	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/296	6 April	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/384	11 May	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/600	5 August	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/612	8 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
8/2022/613	10 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/759	12 October	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/807	27 October	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 2

Communications concerning the question of the Greater Tunb, Lesser Tunb and Abu Musa islands

S/2022/59	27 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/118	15 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

S/2022/351	26 April	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/475	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/502	21 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning the situation in Georgia

S/2022/173	2 March	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/227	15 March	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/308	11 April	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/380	9 May	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Chapter 4

Communications concerning relations between Cameroon and Nigeria

S/2022/832	1 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/833	4 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning the situation in Sierra Leone

S/2022/623	10 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/624	15 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Chapter 6

Communications concerning the situation in Guinea-Bissau

S/2022/996	23 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea-Bissau to the President of the Security Council
		Security Council

Chapter 7

Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)

S/2022/345	22 April	Thirty-fifth semi-annual report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2022/749	11 October	Thirty-sixth semi-annual report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)

Chapter 8

Security Council resolution 1595 (2005)

S/2022/660	16 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/661	31 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2022/972	13 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/973	16 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning the International Criminal Court

S/2022/494	17 June	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/705	20 September	Letter from the representative of Ireland to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 10

Communications concerning the Collective Security Treaty Organization

S/2022/435	26 May	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/525	29 June	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2022/902	30 November	Letter from the representative of Belarus to the Secretary-General
S/2022/909	1 December	Letter from the representative of Belarus to the Secretary-General

Chapter 11

Communications concerning the League of Arab States

S/2022/57	25 January	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/169	1 March	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/349	21 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/372	28 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/394	12 May	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Israel

S/2022/5	3 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/206	10 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/581	27 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/679	7 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 13

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and the United States of America

S/2022/170	1 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2022/891	29 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

Chapter 14

Communications concerning Kazakhstan

S/2022/178	2 March	Letter from the representative of
		Kazakhstan to the President of the
		Security Council

Chapter 15

Communications concerning relations between Cuba and the United States of America

S/2022/895	17 November	Identical letters from the representative of Cuba to the Secretary-General and the
		President of the Security Council

Communications concerning relations between Kyrgyzstan and Tajikistan

S/2022/701	18 September	Letter from the representative of Tajikistan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2022/770	17 October	Letter from the representative of Kyrgyzstan to the Secretary-General
S/2022/942	5 December	Letter from the representative of Tajikistan to the Secretary-General

Appendices

I

Membership of the Security Council during the year 2022

Albania Brazil China China France Gabon Gabon Ghana India India Ireland Kenya Kenya Mexico Norway Russian Federation United Arab Emirates United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

II Representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives accredited to the Security Council

The following representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives served on the Security Council in 2022:

Albania

Mr. Edi Rama¹ (Prime Minister)

Mrs. Olta Xhaçka² (Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs)

Ms. Megi Fino³ (Deputy Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Ferit Hoxha

Ms. Albana Dautllari

Mr. Arian Spasse

Mrs. Brunilda Minarolli Peçi

Mr. Enian Lamce

Mr. Ilir Nezaj

Mr. Andris Stastoli

Mr. Eno Çollaku

Brazil

Mr. Carlos Alberto Franco França⁴ (Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Fernando Simas Magalhães⁵ (Vice-Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Ronaldo Costa Filho

Mr. João Genésio de Almeida Filho

Mr. Luís Guilherme Parga Cintra

Mrs. Paula Aguiar Barboza

Mr. Emerson Coraiola Yinde Kloss

Mr. George de Oliveira Marques

Mr. Cícero Tobias de Oliveira Freitas

Mr. Alexandre Jorge De Lima

Mr. Guilherme Marquardt Bayer

Ms. Melina Espeschit Maia

Ms. Maitê de Souza Schmitz

Mr. Fabiano Burkhardt

Mr. Fabio Cunha Pinto Coelho

- Mr. Pedro Meirelles Reis Sotero de Menezes
- Mr. Vinicius Fox Drummond Cançado Trindade
- Mr. Tainã Leite Novaes
- Mr. Heitor Figueiredo Sobral Torres
- Ms. Camilla Neves Moreira
- Mr. Adriano Bonotto
- Mr. Roberto Wazima Szatmari
- Mr. Thiago Braz Jardim Oliveira

China

Mr. Wang Yi⁶

- (State Councillor and Minister of Foreign Affairs)
- Mr. Zhang Jun
- Mr. Dai Bing
- Mr. Geng Shuang
- Mr. Sun Zhiqiang
- Mr. Wu Jianjian
- Mr. Liu Yang
- Mr. Liang Hengzhu
- Ms. Jiang Hua
- Mr. Xing Jisheng
- Mr. Han Kangmin
- Mr. Li Kai
- Ms. Gui Dan
- Mr. Gong Cheng
- Ms. Zhang Sisi
- Ms. Cao Liwen
- Ms. Huang Lijin
- Mr. Long Qi
- Ms. Wang Yingtong
- Mr. He Siyang
- Mr. Tian Bingxu
- Mr. Yao Jialiang
- Mr. Xu Yuanzhou
- Ms. Xue Ailong
- Mr. Li Nan

France

Ms. Catherine Colonna⁷ (Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Nicolas de Rivière

Mrs. Nathalie Broadhurst Estival

Ms. Anne Gueguen

Mrs. Sheraz Gasri

Mr. Wadid Benaabou

Mrs. Diarra Dime Labille

Mr. Brice Fodda

Mr. Alexandre Olmedo

Mr. Thibault Samson

Ms. Sophie Lecoutre

Ms. Manon Lebatteux

Gabon

Mr. Michael Moussa Adamo⁸ (Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Pacôme Moubelet-Boubeya⁹ (Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Herman Immongault¹⁰ (Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Michel Xavier Biang

Mrs. Lilly Stella Ngyema Ndong

Mrs. Allegra Pamela R. Bongo

Mrs. Aurélie Flore Koumba Pambo

Ms. Edwige Koumby Missambo

Mr. Jean-Pierre-Hemery Doumbeneny Ndzigna

Ship Captain Jean Claude Mibissa

Mrs. Annette Andrée Onanga

Mr. Christophe Nanga

Mrs. Rita Nanette Kambangoye Ankassa

Ms. Lia Berthiana Bouanga Ayoune

Ms. Prisca Sidonie Oye

Mr. Hans Martien Diaba

Ghana

Mr. Nana Addo Dankwa Akufo-Addo¹¹ (President)

Mr. Mahamudu Bawumia¹² (Vice-President)

Ms. Shirley Ayorkor Botchwey¹³ (Minister for Foreign Affairs and Regional Integration)

Mr. Albert Kan-Dapaah (Minister for National Security)

Ms. Abena Osei-Asare¹⁴ (Deputy Minister for Finance)

Mr. Ramses Cleland¹⁵ (Permanent Secretary)

Mr. Harold Adlai Agyeman

Ms. Carolyn Abena Anima Oppong-Ntiri

Mr. Solomon Kobieh

Mr. Felix Osei Boateng

Mr. Felix Akom Nyarku

Mr. Jeswuni Abudu-Birresborn

Ms. Rita Osei

Mr. Bismark Anyanah

Ms. Renne Yarborkor Abbey

Mrs. Khalilah Hackman

Mrs. Linda Kesse Antwi

Ms. Nana Akua Nyarkoa Tenkorang

Ms. Ama Anima Anang

Mr. Frederick Ameyaw

India

Mr. Subrahmanyam Jaishankar¹⁶ (Minister for External Affairs)

Mr. V. Muraleedharan¹⁷ (Minister of State for External Affairs)

Mr. Rajkumar Ranjan Singh¹⁸ (Minister of State for External Affairs)

Mr. Vinay Kwatra¹⁹ (Foreign Secretary)

Mr. Sanjay Verma²⁰ (Secretary (West))

Mr. Saurabh Kumar (Secretary (East)) Mr. S. Raghuram²¹ (Director, Ministry of External Affairs)

Mr. Prakash Gupta²² (Joint Secretary)

Mrs. Ruchira Kamboj

Mr. T. S. Tirumurti

Mr. Ravindra Raguttahalli

Mr. Nagaraj Naidu Kakanur

Mr. Amarnath Asokan

Mr. Pratik Mathur

Mr. Madhu Sudan Ravindran

Mr. Mayank Singh

Mr. Rajesh Parihar

Mr. Mijito Vinito

Mr. Ashish Sharma

Mr. Dinesh Setia

Mr. Surendra Adhana

Ireland

Mr. Simon Coveney²³ (Minister for Foreign Affairs and of Defence)

Mr. Colm Brophy²⁴ (Minister of State for Overseas Development Aid and Diaspora)

Mr. Thomas Byrne²⁵ (Minister of State for European Affairs)

Mr. Paul Gallagher²⁶ (Attorney General)

Mr. Fergal Mythen

Ms. Geraldine Byrne Nason

Mr. Jim Kelly

Ms. Cáit Moran

Mr. Martin Gallagher

Mr. Brian Flynn

Mr. Donal Kenneally

Mr. Micheál Tierney

Mr. Eoghan McSwiney

Ms. Anne-Marie O'Sullivan

Ms. Siobhán Miley

Mr. Shane Hereward Ryan

- Ms. Sharon Lennon
- Ms. Fiona Broderick
- Mr. John Gilroy
- Mr. Brian Cahalane
- Mr. Conleth Brady
- Ms. Carol Staunton
- Ms. Jillian Marie O'Keeffe
- Ms. Niamh Mary Kelly
- Ms. Aileen Murray
- Mr. John Devlin
- Ms. Aoife Erraught

Kenya

Mr. George Orina²⁷ (Director General, Ministry for Foreign Affairs)

- Mr. A. Korir Singoei²⁸ (Principal Secretary Ministry for Foreign and Diaspora Affairs)
- Mr. Martin Kimani
- Mr. Michael Kapkiai Kiboino
- Ms. Alice Njambi Kinyungu
- Ms. Jayne Jepkorir Toroitich
- Mr. Gideon Kinuthia Ndung'u
- Colonel Njoroge Njuguna Gitogo
- Lieutenant Colonel Roseline Monyeka Momanyi
- Ms. Stephanie Ngonyo Muigai
- Ms. Catherine Nyaboke Nyakoe
- Mr. Darius Nzangi Mutua
- Mr. Arthur Ahuya Olanda
- Ms. Teresa Wanjiku Mathenge
- Mr. Kamau Kariuki
- Mr. Swabri Ali Abbas
- Ms. Tracy Wanjiru Mbabu
- Ms. Eva Nthoki

Mexico

Mr. Marcelo Ebrard Casaubón²⁹ (Secretary for Foreign Affairs)

Victor Manuel Villalobos Arambula³⁰ (Minister of Agriculture and Rural Development)

Mr. Juan Ramón de la Fuente Ramirez

- Mrs. Alicia Guadalupe Buenrostro Massieu
- Mr. Juan Gómez Robledo Verduzco
- Mr. Juan Sandoval Mendiolea
- Mr. Enrique Javier Ochoa Martinez
- Mr. Eduardo Alcibiades Sanchez Kiesslich
- Mr. Pablo Adrián Arrocha Olabuenaga
- Ms. María Antonieta Socorro Jáquez Huacuja
- Ms. Flor de Lis Vásquez Muñoz
- Mr. Jesús Velázquez Castillo
- Mr. Rodolfo Florentino Díaz Ortega
- Mr. Bruno Ríos Sánchez
- Mr. Christian Tonatiuh González Jiménez
- Ms. Natalia Jiménez Alegría
- Ms. Carmen Robledo López
- Mr. Fernando de la Mora Salcedo
- Mr. Luis Gerardo Elizondo Belden
- Ms. Sylvia Paola Mendoza Elguea
- Mr. José de Jesús Cisneros Chávez
- Mr. Jorge Arturo Ríos Badillo
- Ms. Elena Curzio Vila
- Mr. Mauricio Reza Bautista

Norway

Mr. Jonas Gahr Støre³¹ (Prime Minister)

- Ms. Anniken Huitfeldt³² (Minister for Foreign Affairs)
- Ms. Anne Beathe Tvinnereim³³ (Minister of International Development)
- Ms. Gry Haugsbakken³⁴ (State Secretary)
- Ms. Mona Juul
- Ms. Trine Skarbøvik Heimerback
- Mr. Odd Inge Kvalheim
- Ms. Meena Asiya Syed
- Ms. Siv Cathrine Moe
- Mr. Tor Henrik Andersen
- Ms. Kjersti Tromsdal
- Mr. Terje Aalia
- Colonel Kåre Emil Brændeland

Ms. Nini Pharo Halle

Mr. Vebjørn Heines

Mr. Magnus Forberg Andersen

Ms. Hanne Melfald

Mr. Jon Christian Møller

Mr. Einar Rystad

Ms. Mona Løvstad Tranoey

Mr. Ulrik Tetzschner

Russian Federation

Mr. Sergey V. Lavrov³⁵ (Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Sergey Vershinin³⁶ (Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Vassily A. Nebenzia

Mr. Dmitry A. Polyanskiy

Mr. Gennady V. Kuzmin

Mr. Dmitry S. Chumakov

Ms. Anna Evstigneeva

Mr. Stepan Y. Kuzmenkov

Mr. Evgeny Y. Varganov

Ms. Dina A. Gilmutdinova

Mr. Andrei. V. Grebenshchikov

Mr. Fedor K. Strzhizhovskiy

Mr. Stanislav S. Aleksaev

Mr. Alexey Boguslavskiy

Mr. Vadim S. Kirpichenko

Mr. Oleg O. Mikhailov

Mr. Maxim V. Biryukov

Mr. Nikolay V. Khloponin

Ms. Maria V. Zabolotskaya

Mr. Boris A. Meshchanov

Ms. Natalia A. Karmazinskaya

Ms. Nadezhda V. Sokolova

Mr. Evgeny A. Skachkov

Mr. Stanislav M. Suprunenko

Mr. Sergey S. Ermakov

Mr. Georgy A. Barsukov

Mr. Alexander S. Proskuryakov

Ms. Gloriya A. Agaronova

Mr. Igor Chibisov

Mr. Aleksander V. Shevchenko

Mr. Sergei A. Leonidchenko

Mr. Aleksandr V. Terekhov

Mr. Dmitry Glukhov

United Arab Emirates

Ms. Mariam al-Mheiri³⁷ (Minister for Climate Change and Environment)

Ms. Noura bint Mohammed Al Kaabi³⁸ (Minister of Culture and Youth)

Ms. Reem Al Hashimy³⁹ (Minister of State for International Cooperation)

Ms. Sarah bint Yousef Al Amiri⁴⁰ (Minister of State)

Mr. Shakhbout Bin Nahyan Bin Mubarak Al Nahyan⁴¹ (Minister of State)

Mr. Khalifa Shaheen Almarar⁴² (Minister of State, Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation)

Mrs. Lana Zaki Nusseibeh43

Mr. Mohamed Issa Abushahab

Mrs. Ameirah Obaid Mohamed Obaid Alhefeiti

Ms. Ghasaq Yousif Abdalla Shaheen

Mr. Suood Rashed Ali Alwali Almazrouei

Mr. Majid Mohammad Abdulrahman Mohammad Almutawa

Ms. Shahd Jamal Yousuf Ibrahim Matar

Mr. Ahmed Abdelrahman Almahmoud

Mr. Muath Mohd Alwari

Ms. Nasra Arif Nasser Saleh Alrahma

Mr. Mohd Abdulrahman Mohamed Jalil Sultan Alolama

Ms. Fatema Yousuf Mohammad

Ms. Khaula Ali Alshamsi

Mr. Mohammad Yousuf Bastaki

Ms. Maysoun Hassan AlMatrooshi

Ms. Maha Yaqoot Harqoos

Mr. Mohamed Boausaibah Al-Ali

Ms. Sarah Ebrahim Alawadhi

Ms. Myan Medhat Tantawy

Mr. Rashed Jamal Azzam

Ms. Reem Mohamed Alameri

Colonel Majid Alnakhi Al Ali

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

Mr. James Cleverly⁴⁴ (Secretary of State for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Affairs)

Lord Tariq Mahmood Ahmad of Wimbledon⁴⁵ (Minister of State for the Commonwealth and Development, the United Nations and South Asia)

Ms. Barbara Woodward

Mr. James Kariuki

Mr. James Roscoe

Mr. Thomas Woodroffe

Mr. Chanaka Liam Wickremasinghe

Mr. Richard Croker

Ms. Alice Jacobs

Colonel Oliver James Fenton Nurton

Lieutenant Colonel Andrew Higgs

Mr. Julian Peter Mansfield

Mr. Raj Kumar Ghose

Ms. Clelia Lucy Uhart

Mr. Benjamin Roberts

Ms. Asima Ghazi-Bouillon

Mr. David Kinna

Ms. Virginia Browning

Mr. Alistair Robert Steven Kelsey

Ms. Natalie Elizabeth Palmer

Mr. Matthew Frederick Ronald Dawes

Ms. Leah Jane Gray

Mr. Jonathan Michael Barbakoff

Mr. Stacy John Weld-Blundell

Mr. Mungo Woodifield

Mr. Thomas Phipps

Ms. Melina Lito

Ms. Kelly White

Mr. Nicholas Conway

Ms. Matilda O'Kelly

Mr. Philip Reed

Mr. Philip Beer

- Ms. Charlotte Andrews
- Ms. Emma Zahedi
- Mr. Edward Rice-Howell
- Mr. James Rogers
- Mr. Phelim Brady
- Ms. Emily Mitchell
- Ms. Nicole Godwin
- Mr. Jonathan Hollis
- Ms. Hannah Zainuddin
- Mr. Mark Howard
- Ms. Laura Dix
- Ms. Naomi Holyfield
- Ms. Elizabeth Page
- Ms. Jenny Sims
- Mr. Fergus Eckersley
- Ms. Mariea Sekijima

United States of America

Mr. Antony John Blinken⁴⁶ (Secretary of State)

Ms. Bonnie Jenkins⁴⁷ (Under Secretary of State for Arms Control and International Security)

Ms. Victoria Nuland⁴⁸ (Under Secretary of State for Political Affairs)

Ms. Uzra Zeya⁴⁹ (Under Secretary of State for Civilian Security, Democracy, and Human Rights)

Ms. Liz Sherwood-Randall⁵⁰ (Assistant to the President for Homeland Security)

Mrs. Linda Thomas-Greenfield⁵¹

- Mr. Richard M. Mills, Jr.
- Mr. Christopher P. Lu
- Mr. Jeffrey DeLaurentis
- Mr. Rodney Hunter
- Ms. Margaret McElligott
- Mr. Mark A. Simonoff
- Ms. Trina Saha
- Mr. Scott Turner
- Ms. Faith Kroeker-Maus
- Mr. John Kelley

Notes

- ¹ Presided at the 9052nd meeting, on 2 June 2022.
- ² Participated in the 8949th and 9036th meetings, on 18 January and 19 May 2022, and presided at the 9064th and 9065th meetings, on 15 and 16 June 2022.
- ³ Participated in the 9158th meeting, on 20 October 2022.
- ⁴ Presided at the 9090th meeting, on 12 July 2022, and participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ⁵ Presided at the 9096th meeting, on 19 July 2022.
- ⁶ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ⁷ Presided at the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ⁸ Participated in the 9036th and 9135th meetings, on 19 May and 22 September 2022, and presided at the 9147th, 9149th, 9150th and 9151st meetings, on 6, 11 and 12 October 2022.
- ⁹ Participated in the 8953rd and 8954th meetings, on 25 and 26 January 2022.
- ¹⁰ Participated in the 9181st and 9188th meetings, on 3 and 10 November 2022.
- ¹¹ Presided at the 9188th meeting, on 10 November 2022.
- ¹² Participated in the 8953rd meeting, on 25 January 2022.
- ¹³ Participated in the 8949th, 9036th, 9090th and 9135th meetings, on 18 January, 19 May, 12 July and 22 September 2022, and presided at the 9181st meeting, on 3 November 2022.
- ¹⁴ Participated in the 9064th meeting, on 15 June 2022.
- ¹⁵ Participated in the 9220th meeting, on 14 December 2022.
- ¹⁶ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022, and presided at the 9220th meeting, on 14 December 2022.
- ¹⁷ Participated in the 9036th and 9147th meetings, on 19 May and 6 October 2022.
- ¹⁸ Participated in the 9052nd meeting, on 2 June 2022.
- ¹⁹ Participated in the 9181st meeting, on 3 November 2022.
- ²⁰ Participated in the 8989th meeting, on 8 March 2022.
- ²¹ Participated in the 9037th meeting, on 20 May 2022.
- ²² Participated in the 9088th, on 11 July 2022.
- ²³ Participated in the 8989th, 9018th and 9221st meetings, on 8 March, 19 April and 15 December 2022.
- ²⁴ Participated in the 9036th, meetings, on 19 May 2022.
- ²⁵ Participated in the 9179th and 9181st meetings, on 2 and 3 November 2022.
- ²⁶ Participated in the 9052nd meeting, on 2 June 2022.
- ²⁷ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ²⁸ Participated in the 9221st meeting, on 15 December 2022.
- ²⁹ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ³⁰ Participated in the 9036th meeting, on 19 May 2022.
- ³¹ Presided at the 8953rd and 8954th meetings, on 25 and 26 January 2022; and participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ³² Presided at the 8949th meeting, on 18 January 2022; and participated in the 9150th meeting, on 12 October 2022.
- ³³ Participated in the 9036th meeting, on 19 May 2022.
- ³⁴ Participated in the 9064th and 9135th meetings, on 15 June and 22 September 2022.
- ³⁵ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ³⁶ Presided at the 8967th and 8968th meetings, on 16 and 17 February 2022.
- ³⁷ Presided at the 8989th meeting, on 8 March 2022.
- ³⁸ Participated in the 9220th and 9221st meetings, on 14 and 15 December 2022.
- ³⁹ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ⁴⁰ Participated in the 9014th meeting, on 11 April 2022.
- ⁴¹ Participated in the 9147th and 9188th meetings, on 6 October and 10 November 2022.
- ⁴² Presided at the 9001st meeting, on 23 March 2022.
- ⁴³ Participated in the 8949th, 9052nd, 9064th, 9090th and 9158th meetings, on 18 January, 2 and 15 June, 12 July and 20 October 2022 as Permanent Representative of the United Arab Emirates to the United Nations and Assistant Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation for Political Affairs.
- ⁴⁴ Participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ⁴⁵ Presided at the 9014th, 9015th and 9016th meetings, on 11, 12 and 13 April 2022.
- ⁴⁶ Presided at the 9036th meeting, on 19 May 2022; and participated in the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.
- ⁴⁷ Participated in the 9109th meeting, on 11 August 2022.
- ⁴⁸ Participated in the 9221st meeting, on 15 December 2022.
- ⁴⁹ Participated in the 8949th and the 9052nd meetings, on 18 January and 2 June 2022.
- ⁵⁰ Participated in the 9188th meeting, 10 November 2022.
- ⁵¹ Participated in the 9016th, 9064th, 9147th, 9158th and 9220th meetings, on 13 April, 15 June, 6 and 20 October, and 14 December 2022 as Permanent Representative of the United States to the United Nations and Member of President Biden's Cabinet.

III Presidents of the Security Council

The following representatives served as President of the Security Council in 2022.

Norway	
Ms. Mona Juul	January ¹
Russian Federation	
Mr. Vassily A. Nebenzia	February ²
United Arab Emirates	
Ms. Lana Zaki Nusseibeh	March ³
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	
Ms. Barbara Woodward	April ⁴
United States of America	
Mrs. Linda Thomas-Greenfield	May ⁵
Albania	
Mr. Ferit Hoxha	June ⁶
Brazil	
Mr. Ronaldo Costa Filho	July ⁷
China	
Mr. Zhang Jun	August
France	
Mr. Nicolas de Rivière	September ⁸
Gabon	
Mr. Michel Xavier Biang	October ⁹
Ghana	
Mr. Harold Adlai Agyeman	November ¹⁰
India	
Mrs. Ruchira Kamboj	December ¹¹

¹ Mr. Jonas Gahr Støre, Prime Minister of Norway, presided at the 8953rd and 8954th meetings, on 25 and 26 January 2022; Ms. Anniken Huitfeldt, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Norway, presided at the 8949th meeting, on 18 January 2022.

¹¹ Mr. Subrahmanyam Jaishankar, Minister for External Affairs of India, presided at the 9220th meeting, on 14 December 2022.



² Mr. Sergey Vershinin, Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation, presided at the 8967th and 8968th meetings, on 16 and 17 February 2022.

³ Mr. Khalifa Shaheen Almarar, Minister of State and Minister of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation of the United Arab Emirates, presided at the 9001st meeting, on 23 March 2022; Ms. Mariam al-Mheiri, Minister for Climate Change and Environment of the United Arab Emirates, presided at the 8989th meeting, on 8 March 2022.

⁴ Lord Tariq Mahmood Ahmad of Wimbledon, Minister of State for the Commonwealth and Development, the United Nations and South Asia of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, presided at the 9014th, 9015th and 9016th meetings, on 11, 12 and 13 April 2022.

⁵ Mr. Antony John Blinken, Secretary of State of the United States of America, presided at the 9036th meeting, on 19 May 2022.

⁶ Mr. Edi Rama, Prime Minister of Albania, presided at the 9052nd meeting, on 2 June 2022; Mrs. Olta Xhaçka, Minister for Europe and for Foreign Affairs of Albania, presided at the 9064th and 9065th meetings, on 15 and 16 June 2022.

⁷ Mr. Carlos Alberto Franco França, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Brazil, presided at the 9090th meeting, on 12 July 2022; Mr. Fernando Simas Magalhães, Vice-Minister for Foreign Affairs, presided at the 9096th meeting, on 19 July 2022.

⁸ Ms. Catherine Colonna, Minister for Europe and for Foreign Affairs of France, presided at the 9135th meeting, on 22 September 2022.

⁹ Mr. Michael Moussa Adamo, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Gabon, presided at the 9147th, 9149th, 9150th and 9151st meetings, on 6, 11 and 12 October 2022.

¹⁰ Mr. Nana Addo Dankwa Akufo-Addo, President of the Republic of Ghana, presided at the 9188th meeting, on 10 November 2022; Ms. Shirley Ayorkor Botchwey, Minister for Foreign Affairs and Regional Integration, presided at the 9181st meeting, on 3 November 2022.